
 
 

 

 
Despatched: 02.03.15 

 

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

10 March 2015 at 7.00 pm 

Conference Room, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks 

 

AGENDA 

 

Membership 

 

Chairman:  County Councillor Chard Vice-Chairman: Councillor London 

 

District Councillors Members 

Cllrs. Davison, Edwards-Winser, Searles, Towell, Williamson and a vacancy  

The County Councillors for the 7 County Electoral Divisions representing the Sevenoaks District: 

Brazier, Brookbank,  Mrs. Crabtree, Gough, Parry and Pearman 

The representative from the Kent Association of Local Councils (non voting):  

Cllr. Robson (Reserve Cllr Dilley) 

 

 

 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Pages Contact 

1. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To agree the Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 

9 December 2014, as a correct record 

 

  

2. Declarations of interest   

 
 

 

3. Matters Arising/Update (Including Actions from 

Previous Meetings)  

 

(Pages 5 - 6) 

 
 

 

4. To Receive Any Petitions    

 a) Presentation of Petition by Otford Parish Council: 
Proposed Parking regulations  

 

(Pages 7 – 20)  

 b) Presentation of Petition by Cllr. Walshe: Road 
Surfaces Wickenden and Swaffields Roads  

 

(Pages 21- 22)   

5. On-street parking restriction changes - Traffic Road 

Order 2013 Amendment 2 (various locations)  

(Pages 23 - 

106) 

 

Andy Bracey 

Tel: 01732 227323 

6. On-street parking restriction changes - Traffic Road 

Order 2013 Amendment 12 (Dunton Green)  

(Pages 107 - 

168) 

 

Andy Bracey 

Tel: 01732 227323 

7. Bat and Ball Improvements  (Pages 169 - 

186) 

KCC - Adrian Pigott / 

Nasser Sarrafan 



 

 

 Tel: 03000413912 

 

8. Highway Drainage  (Pages 187 - 

202) 

 

KCC - Kathryn Lewis 

Tel: 03000418181 

 

9. Sevenoaks Highway Works Programme 2014/15  (Pages 203 - 

208) 

 

KCC - Carol 

Valentine/ Julian 

Cook 

Tel: 03000418181 

 

10. Highway Improvement Scheme Progress Report  (Pages 209 - 

214) 

 

KCC - Steven Noad   
Tel: 03000418181 

 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing this agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items which 

may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.) 

 

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to obtain factual 

information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire of the appropriate Contact 

Officer named on a report prior to the day of the meeting. 

 

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in another format 

please do not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as set out below. 

 

For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact: 

 

The Democratic Services Team (01732 227241) 

 

 



 

7 
 

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2014 commencing at 7.00 pm 

 

 

Present: Cllr. Chard (Chairman) 

 

Cllr London (Vice Chairman) 

  

 Cllrs. Davison, Edwards-Winser, Searles, Towell, Underwood, Brookbank, 

Crabtree, Gough, Parry and Dilley 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs. Brazier, Pearman and 

Robson 

 

 Cllrs. Dickins and Eyre were also present. 

 

 

 

18. Minutes  

 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2014 be 

approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

 

19. Declarations of interest  

 
There were no additional declarations of interest.   

 

20. Matters Arising/Update (Including Actions from Previous Meetings)  

 
A Member raised concerns, arising from the Results from the Highways & Transportation 

Annual Satisfaction Survey 2013 considered at the last meeting, relating to the trial 

switch-off of street lighting around Tonbridge Road and White Hart Close in areas 

highlighted on a map which she tabled.  This had a negative impact as it was a main 

artery road in and out of Sevenoaks and affected commuters and school children. She 

asked that this be altered to a partial switch-off. Another Member asked that Kent 

Highways Service also adjust the start time for morning street lights, especially in the 

period either side of the return to GMT, within ¾ mile radius of Sevenoaks, Bat & Ball 

and Dunton Green rail stations so that those who travelled on the 05.03 (and later) rail 

services to London could walk along lit roads. 

 

Action 1: That the Chairman of the Committee write to the Kent County Council 

Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport, requesting those changes to the 

street lighting switch off programme. 

 

The KCC District Manager (Sevenoaks) gave an update on the Working Group formed to 

discuss the progress of the Sevenoaks Cycling Strategy. The Group would meet as 

necessary with the first meeting likely to be January or February 2015. The appointed 

Members were Cllr. Edwards-Winser and Mr. Morrison of the Sevenoaks Cycle Forum. 

The representative of the Sevenoaks Cycle Forum asked that a SDC Council officer also 

be present. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 9 December 2014 

8 

 

 

Resolved: That the actions from the previous meeting be noted.  

 

21. Thameslink Programme: Effect on London Bridge and Kent Rail services - 

Presentation  

 
Mr. Stephen Gasche, the KCC Principal Transport Planner – Rail gave a presentation on 

the effects of the Thameslink Programme and the Network Rail plans to rebuild London 

Bridge Station. 

 

Between 22 and 24 December 2014 Southeastern Trains to Charing Cross were not to 

stop at London Bridge at the morning peak between 07.54 and 09.01 but until 4 January 

2015 certain national tickets were to be accepted on alternative rail, Underground and 

bus services. From 12 January 2015 until August 2016 trains to Charing Cross would not 

stop at London Bridge. During this period no further charge was to be made for 

passengers to complete their journey on certain routes, and season ticket holders were 

to be given coded tickets to be used on the Underground. Finally, from August 2016 the 

trains to Cannon Street would no longer stop at London Bridge but those to Charing 

Cross would and this would continue until January 2018. Once the works were completed 

then the Thameslink and Southeastern services would have dedicated tracks meaning 

that problems on one service would not affect the other. It was also hoped that the rail 

traffic on the Sevenoaks line would be eased once Maidstone had its own direct city 

service from May 2018. 

 

In response to a question, the KCC Principal Transport Planner – Rail advised that the 

dedicated tracks meant there would be less resilient capacity in using another track if 

one had a problem. 

 

The KCC Officer stated that he had passed on the concerns from the Sevenoaks Rail 

Travellers Association (SRTA) that there would be inadequate passenger capacity in the 

morning peak time. A London Bridge Rebuilding, Risks for Sevenoaks Commuters and 

Survival Guide to the London Bridge Rebuilding, both produced by the SRTA, were tabled. 

Roger Johnson, of the SRTA, highlighted his estimate that the remaining trains would 

cover only two thirds or three quarters of the actual need. The tabled documents would 

be available on their website and would be updated. 

 

The Chairman thanked the Officer for the presentation which would be particularly useful 

to leisure travellers who had not been advised of the changes. 

  

22. Presentation of Petition by Chevening Parish Council: Residential parking problems 

around Bessels Green  

 
Parish Cllr. Mrs. Metcalf, Vice Chairman of Chevening Parish Council presented a petition 

from residents of Bessels Green which requested the Board to approve a residents’ 

parking scheme for the 11 residents of Park Place, Bessels Green who had no off-road 

parking. This followed concerns that there would be displaced demand for parking after 

the introduction of parking restrictions around Bessels Green. All residents of Park Place 

had signed the petition. 

 

The SDC Chief Officer Environmental & Operational Services advised that if approved, 

due to existing work commitments, consultation on a scheme was unlikely before 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 9 December 2014 

9 

 

Summer 2015 and subject to comments or objections would not return to the Board 

before September 2015. 

 

Resolved: That Sevenoaks District Council Officers prepare proposals for 

consultation for a residents’ parking scheme for residents of Park Place, Bessels 

Green. 

 

23. Parking problems near the Wildernesse School site  

 
The Board considered a request from a member of the public for a transport scheme 

relating to the Wildernesse School site and for ¼ mile around it. He was concerned at the 

traffic and parking difficulties which would be caused by the opening of the new school or 

schools arising from pupil drop off and pick up and parking from older pupils. 

 

Resolved: That the Committee monitor any traffic issues arising from the 

Wildernesse School site. 

 

24. Oakdene Road - Request from District Councillor  

 
District Cllr. Dickins presented a request to consider the implementation of yellow lines 

along Oakdene Road, Sevenoaks. The residents of the road had opted not to have 

parking restrictions introduced when they were brought in for the rest of the Bradbourne 

Estate. However, since the opening of the Knole Academy he explained that there had 

been difficulties. He tabled a photograph of Oakdene Road. He stated that there were 70 

spaces on the school site there were probably 200 pupils who could have a car and 

although the headteacher had tried to give advice, she was not able to enforce parking 

matters. Cllr. Dickins had discussed the matter with Officers but existing workloads were 

heavy. 

 

The KCC District Manager (Sevenoaks) confirmed that he would consult with the KCC 

Traffic Engineer to consider whether there was a safety issue. 

 

Action 2: The KCC District Manager (Sevenoaks) to consult with the KCC Traffic 

Engineer to consider whether there was a safety issue. Officers to consult with 

local Members and Knole Academy whether the matter can be resolved 

informally. 

 

25. HGV Signage Cramptons Road - Request from District Councillor  

 
The Board considered a report relating to road signage for Crampton’s Road, Sevenoaks. 

The report had been requested by District Cllr. Dickins following concerns that the 

residential road was being over used by HGVs when direct access to the A225 Otford 

Road would be more appropriate. The report advised that £2,000 funding had been 

allocated for signage, arising from the Section 106 agreement for the local Sainsbury’s 

store. Advisory signs would be located at each end of Crampton’s Road and at the exit 

points of each of the industrial or commercial facilities to direct HGV drivers to use as 

little of the road as possible. Subject to available resources for design, consultation and 

implementation the scheme may be able to be delivered in the final quarter of the 

2014/15 financial year, or the first quarter of 2015/16. 

 

Resolved: That the report be noted. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 9 December 2014 

10 

 

 

26. Sevenoaks Highway Works Programme 2014/15  

 
Members considered a report which gave an update on the highway works schemes that 

had been identified and programmed for delivery in 2014/15, and the progress on them.  

 

Resolved: That the report be noted.  

 

27. Highway Improvement Scheme Progress Report  

 
Members considered a report which described the progress to date and anticipated 

progress over the following three months of all programmed highway improvements and 

those schemes that were expected to be included in the KCC 2014/15 Capital 

Programme. 

 

Resolved: That the report be noted. 

 

28. Coordination of work repairs  

 
The KCC District Manager (Sevenoaks) reported on the steps taken by KCC to coordinate 

road works with statutory undertakers. He advised that Kent held regular liaison 

meetings with the utility companies and KCC were doing as much as possible to build 

relationships with them. The Chairman added that there had been a number of 

occasions when utility companies had carried out emergency repairs without notifying 

KCC. 

 

 

 

 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 7.56 PM 

 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



  

ACTIONS FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 9 DECEMBER 2014 

 Action date Description Status and last updated  Contact Officer 

1.  09.12.2014 
That the Chairman of the 

Committee write to the Kent 

County Council Cabinet Member 

for Environment and Transport, 

requesting those changes to the 

street lighting switch off 

programme. (Minute 20) 

Letter sent on 07.01.2015. Acknowledgement received 

dated 13.01.2015 pending full response. 

David Lagzdins 

Tel: 01732 227350 

2.  16.09.2014 
The KCC District Manager 

(Sevenoaks) to consult with the 

KCC Traffic Engineer to consider 

whether there was a safety issue. 

Officers to consult with local 

Members and Knole Academy 

whether the matter can be 

resolved informally. (Minute 10) 

 

An update will be provided at the meeting.  Julian Cook 

Tel: 03000410475 

 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Petition Statement – for JTB Meeting 10 March 2015.doc                                                                Page 1 of 2 

PETITION STATEMENT  
PROPOSED PARKING REGULATIONS - OTFORD 

 
To: The Joint Transportation Board   
 Sevenoaks District Council     Date: 26th January 2015 
 
Copies: Cllr Michelle Lowe, Cllr John Edwards-Winser, Cllr Nick Chard, Otford Parish Council 
 
At the JTB meeting held on 9

th
 December, Cllr John Edwards-Winser gave notice that the parking 

crisis in Otford would be put on the agenda for the next JTB meeting on 10
th
 March.  To support this 

motion a petition has been drawn up and signed by the affected residents of Otford and will be 

presented at the meeting by Irene Roy and Sarah Fenn.  The petition received 50 signatures 

representing 83 per cent support in favour of the proposed parking regulations.   Further detail 

provided at Annex D. 

 

1  BACKGROUND 

 

The petition covers several parking issues in the village caused by commuters and other long stay 

parking.  The parking problems began when restrictions were introduced in several roads within easy 

walking distance of the railway station.  Displaced commuters moved onto other areas without 

parking restrictions.  The parking pressure on these roads was compounded last autumn when more 

commuters were displaced by the introduction of parking charges in the village car park.  Further 

detail provided at Annex A and photographs at Annex B.       

 

2 IMPACT ON RESIDENTS & PARADE BUSINESSES 

 

Warham Road:  All day parking has left the residents of Warham Road with nowhere for visitors and 

for many, care workers to park.  Drives are frequently blocked and inconsiderate parking makes it 

difficult for residents, and in some cases large vehicles, to get through.   

 

Sevenoaks Road at Otford pond:  Commuters have taken over this stretch of road taking away much 

needed parking for school drop offs/pickups and visitors to the High Street.     

 

Holmesdale/Bubblestone House/Cottage Entrance:  Exiting onto Sevenoaks Road has become 

extremely dangerous from this entrance with the solid line of commuters parked opposite.  In 

particular, turning right into oncoming traffic moving at speed has become extremely hazardous. 

 

The Parade:  The restricted parking in nearby roads has left Parade staff with nowhere practical to 

park.  The only unrestricted parking area adjacent to the Parade on Bubblestone Road is taken by 

commuters long before Parade staff arrive for work.   

 

Parade Parking Bays:  The limited parking available in front of the shops is being blocked by 

commuters and others, including staff, seeking free long stay parking.  This leaves little or no parking 

for customers resulting in a loss of business, particularly for the post office, and unless urgent action 

is taken the village risks losing this vital service and potentially others.     

 

3 ACTION REQUESTED 

 

The Senior Engineer for Traffic & Parking has already approved (verbally with Cllr Edwards-Winser) 

the following proposals detailed in the map at Annex C: 

 

a) Warham Road: Single yellow line no waiting 9am-10am west side and 2pm-3pm east side Mon-Fri. 

b) Sevenoaks Road:  2 hour waiting restriction no return 1 hour Mon-Sat 8.30am-6.30pm. 

c) Holmesdale/Bubblestone House/Cottage Entrance:  Double yellow lines opposite entrance. 

d) Bubblestone Road:  Single yellow line restricted waiting from 7.30am-8.30am alongside Parade.     

e) Parade parking bays:  2 hour limited waiting no return 1 hour enforced Mon-Sat. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4a



Petition Statement – for JTB Meeting 10 March 2015.doc                                                                Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

4 SUMMARY 

 

The residents and businesses of Otford whose lives are affected on a daily basis by the parking 

nightmare that has been created in the centre of the village appeal to the JTB to approve the proposed 

parking regulations detailed on the map at Annex C.   

 

To avoid a serious accident and loss of vital services to the village, such as the post office, it is 

imperative that the parking regulations are implemented without delay.    

 

 

 

Irene Roy 

Castle House 

Sevenoaks Road  

Otford   TN14 5PB 

 

 

ANNEXES: 

 

A:  Email to Cllr Michelle Lowe covering Otford parking issues in detail. 

B:  Photographs of parking problems. 

C:  Map showing proposed parking regulations approved by Senior Engineer for Traffic & Parking. 

D:  Results of petition for new parking regulations in Otford.   

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4a



Annex A – Otford Parking Regulations                                             For JTB Meeting 10
th

 March 2015                                                Page 1 of 3 

 

7 December 2014 
 
Dear Michelle, 
 
Thank you for your email and all the time and energy you have put into the parking problems in 
Otford.  It has also taken up a great deal of mine too and I am only dealing with one issue in the 
district! 
 
I have taken up your suggestion and joined forces with Warham Road residents association and have 
already met with their representative Sarah Fenn. We are writing to update you, as requested, on the 
impact of the parking charges on Warham Road and the Parade. 
 
The village car parking charges have apparently had a very positive effect on trade in the High Street, 
but unfortunately they have had a less desirable impact elsewhere in the village.  The combined 
impact of the parking charges and the parking restrictions in the Bubblestone area (Bubblestone 
Road, The Butts, The Old Walk, Well Road and Sidney Gardens) have had a detrimental effect on 
those areas without parking restrictions, in particular Warham Road and Sevenoaks Road.  The 
situation is no longer tenable and has now become dangerous; we have sadly already had our first 
accident involving three vehicles on Sevenoaks Road near the Warham Road junction.  When SDC 
introduced the parking restrictions in the Bubblestone area the parking charges were not in force and 
clearly no one envisaged the knock on effect these charges would have on the village.  It is now 
imperative that urgent action is taken in the following roads. 
 
Warham Road 
 
On the very day the parking charges went live in the village Warham Road was bumper to bumper 
with all-day parking on both sides of the road.  As a result, there is now nowhere for visitors to 
Warham Road to park and residents, many of whom are elderly and infirm, regularly find themselves 
blocked in by parked vehicles. The vehicles are frequently poorly and inconsiderately parked making it 
difficult for residents, or other vehicles, to get through, as clearly demonstrated by the attached 
photos.  A fire engine was recently unable to respond to a 999 call due to the poor parking on both 
sides of the road.  It will not be long before there is a more serious consequence to the all-day 
parking.  Warham Road is now the only residential road left in the centre of the village not to have 
parking restrictions and as such has become targeted by those seeking free all-day parking.  As the 
last residential road left standing the introduction of parking restrictions here would not move the 
problem elsewhere as was the case following the piecemeal introduction of restrictions in Tudor 
Drive, then Bubblestone Road, The Butts, Well Road and so on. 
 
As you know from the meeting you attended on 29th July 2013 Warham Road obtained a formal 
response from all 38 properties in Warham Road concerning parking enforcement and achieved a 
consensus from 76% of the residents.  By contrast Bubblestone Road only had a 55% consensus.    As 
documented in the Parking Meeting minutes of 31st July you kindly confirmed that SDC had added 
Warham Road to the parking enforcement waiting list and that a formal submission concerning the 
final proposal would be requested approximately 18 months later in early 2015.   
 
Following your advice, it was also agreed that Warham Road would align with the parking restrictions 
in the Bubblestone area to keep monitoring for Traffic Officers to a minimum.  It was only through 
your email of 31st October 2014 that Warham Road learnt that they had been moved to the bottom 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4a



Annex A – Otford Parking Regulations                                             For JTB Meeting 10
th

 March 2015                                                Page 2 of 3 

 

of the parking enforcement waiting list putting their case back 18 months to two years, apparently 
due to the amount of time already spent in Otford.  
 
Warham Road have had to put up with an awful lot from SDC over the last few years with the 
extension of the Primary school in their backyard and resulting trucks, lorries and earthwork’s vehicles 
using Warham Road for several months.  Now they have become the free village car park for shop 
workers, local business, teaching staff and commuters from early morning to early evening.  At a 
recent Parking Meeting the view of Warham Road residents was reassessed.  All were still in 
agreement with the proposals put forward in July 2013 and agreed that parking enforcement was 
now urgent as the all-day parking had got out of control following the parking charges.  Contrary to 
local myth, the residents of Warham Road are in agreement on parking enforcement and are ready to 
go ahead with the formal submission that was promised for the New Year.   
 
The Parade 
 
I have written many emails to the Parish Council and SDC regarding the parking problems for Parade 
workers caused by the restricted parking in the Bubblestone area.  Rather than finding a permanent 
solution to these problems, SDC advised the Parade staff to park in Warham Road and Sevenoaks 
Road where there are no parking restrictions. 
 
Following the introduction of the parking charges, these roads are no longer available for parking as 
they are now full of parked vehicles long before Parade staff arrive for work. The single yellow lines in 
the Bubblestone area are now also a target since the charging and are taken early by those who are 
able to re-park their vehicles throughout the day according to the waiting times.  Parade staff and 
other local businesses now have nowhere practical to park. The commuters may have moved on to 
pastures new, but the Bubblestone area is still full of parked vehicles throughout the day and it is 
difficult to see what the residents in this area have gained by the introduction of the yellow lines.  
 
What is clear, however, is that the parking restrictions and parking charges have created more 
problems than they have solved especially for the small businesses on the Parade who provide a vital 
service to the village.  Trade in the High Street has apparently improved since the parking charges, but 
the same cannot be said for the businesses on the Parade who are struggling.  Whilst commuters are 
having the last laugh finding every available free parking space, the village is in danger of losing 
essential services, such as the post office, provided by the Parade of shops.  
 
The section of unrestricted road you refer to on Bubblestone, which apparently was left unpainted by 
SDC for the Parade, is also taken by commuters long before Parade workers arrive for work.  Without 
a notice making it clear that this section of the road is intended for the Parade there is no point 
leaving it without parking restrictions only for commuters to benefit.  I did mention this to Andy 
Bracey in my email, but I have not received a reply to this point.   
 
A simple, quick and inexpensive solution to the problem for Parade workers would be to alter the 
waiting times in the Bubblestone area.  I have already made this suggestion in a previous email to 
Andy Bracey, but he was not happy with the proposed times put forward.  The Parade workers have 
reviewed these times and would now like to propose that the waiting times on one side of the roads 
in the Bubblestone area are altered from 9am to 10am to 8am to 9am. This slight change would still 
deter commuters, but would also provide a practical alternative to staff having to re-park throughout 
the day according the waiting times to avoid parking tickets. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4a



Annex A – Otford Parking Regulations                                             For JTB Meeting 10
th

 March 2015                                                Page 3 of 3 

 

 
For your information, Parade workers are not interested in parking permits for the parking spaces on 
the Parade as there would be nowhere for customers to park. They would, however, like the 
unrestricted road left for them ear marked in some way so that they and their customers can make 
use of it rather than the space being taken by early birds seeking free parking. 
 
To compound the parking problems of the village the car dealership Beadles, due to expansion, have 
told their staff to find parking elsewhere and are now parking in Sevenoaks Road, Warham Road and 
anywhere else they can find free parking. 
 
Holmesdale and Bubblestone Farm Cottage Entrance 
 
Another impact of the charging and the subsequent all-day parking on Sevenoaks Road is the difficult 
and dangerous situation that has now been created for the residents of the above properties trying to 
exit onto Sevenoaks Road.  I understand that a solution has been put forward to SDC to introduce 
double yellow lines opposite the entrance.  
 
Whilst parking charges were necessary in the village car park they have exacerbated an already 
difficult situation in the above roads.  The only sensible way forward now is for an urgent review to be 
carried out and an assessment made based on the priority of the other villages ahead of Otford in the 
queue for parking enforcement.  It would not be unreasonable for the other villages to have to wait a 
little longer for their issues to be addressed if an assessment was made based on urgency and fairness 
which we hope would bring Otford to the top of the pile. 
 
 Summary of Urgent Action 
 
 1 Change restricted waiting time on one side of the roads in the Bubblestone area to 8am to 9am. 
 
2 Delineation and enforcement of unrestricted parking area in Bubblestone Road for the Parade. 
 
3 Parking restrictions for Warham Road to mirror those in the Bubblestone area. 
 
4 Double yellow lines opposite the entrance to Holmesdale and Bubblestone Farm. 
 
The above parking enforcement requests would not cause problems elsewhere in the village and 
would make an enormous difference to the current parking nightmare and safety concerns for 
Warham Road, the Parade and the village. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you. 
  
Regards, 
 
   
Irene Roy 
 
Chairman – Otford & Shoreham Conservative Branch 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

Agenda Item 4a



Page 14

Agenda Item 4a



Page 15

Agenda Item 4a



Warham Rd Parking – Otford – 14 Oct 2014 onwards.doc                                       Compiled by Sarah Fenn                                              Page 4 of 4 

 

A225 – TYPICAL SIGHT EVERY WEEKDAY MORNING FROM 7.30am ONWARDS (heading towards pond) 

      

OTFORD MEMORIAL VILLAGE CAR PARK – 2.50pm – CAR PARK PRACTICALLY EMPTY 

Mostly drivers  parking to collect children from Otford Primary School 

      

      

Cars at this end of 

the car park have 

drivers sitting in 

them – potentially 

early for collecting 

children or just 

visiting the village.   

 

The area closest to 

the hall had lots of 

spaces – difficult to 

photograph without 

including people or 

specific number 

plates which need 

to be avoided 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4a



 
 
 
 

 

         Sevenoaks Road 
         Existing no restrictions. 
         Proposed double yellow line 
 
        Sevenoaks Road West side 
        Existing no restrictions. 
        Proposed 2 hour limited waiting 
        No return within 1 hour 
        Mon-Sat.  8.30am – 6.30pm 
         
        Warham Road hammer head 
        Existing single yellow line 
        Mon-Fri.  8-9am & 3-4pm. 
        Proposed double yellow line 
  
        Warham Road 
        Existing no restrictions. 
        Proposed single yellow line 
        Mon-Fri. 
        9am-10am left side as enter 
        2pm-3pm right side as enter 

10am 

Circulated to all affected 
residents by Sarah Fenn  
and Irene Roy.  Jan 2015. 

Existing no restrictions first nine 
car stretch on left of 
Bubblestone Road after 
entrance to parade. 
Proposed yellow line 
Mon-Sat.  7.30am - 8.30am 

le yellow 

For Petition to be reviewed at JTB Meeting 10th March 2015 

2 2 hour limited waiting 
no return 1 hour 
enforced Mon-Sat 

Parade parking bays 

Parade Parking bays.  Existing no 
restrictions.  Propose 2 hour limited 
waiting no return 1 hour. 
Mon-Sat.  8.30am-6.30pm 
 

Bus 
Stop 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex D – Responses to Otford Parking Restrictions Proposals.doc                  For JTB Meeting 10
th

 March 2015                     Page 1 of 1 
 

 

ANNEX D 

 

 

Results of Petition for Proposed Changes to Parking Restrictions in Otford 

 

 
 

Road 

No. of 
Residents 
Affected 

No. of 
Residents Not 

Signing 
Petition 

No. of 
Residents 

Signing 
Petition 

Proportion of 
Residents in 

Favour of 
Proposals 

Sevenoaks Road 4 0 4 100% 

The Parade 7 0 7 100% 

Bubblestone Road 11 0 11 100% 

Warham Road 38 10 28 74% 

TOTALS 60 10 50 83% 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



WICKENDEN ROAD & SWAFFIELD ROAD, Sevenoaks 

 

A petition has been signed by residents in these roads, 

calling for early resurfacing of the highways.   These 

roads are concrete-based and have seldom been 

treated over the decades, with equally poor footpath 

surfaces.  Both are residential roads, but in the case of 

Wickenden Road there is considerable through traffic, 

as it is a regular rat-run, as well as offering access to 

the sizeable Hillingdon residential area. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4b



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ON-STREET PARKING RESTRICTION CHANGES – TRO 2013 AMENDMENT 2 (VARIOUS 

LOCATIONS) 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 10 March 2015 

 

Report of  Chief Officer, Environmental & Operational Services 

Status: For Decision 

Key Decision: No  

Executive Summary: The consideration of objections and responses to proposed parking 

restriction changes at a number of locations across the District. 

This report supports the Key Aims of the Community Plan; 

• Safer Communities (by improving road safety issues) 

• Caring Communities (by providing or adjusting disabled parking facilities) 

• Dynamic Economy (by providing more appropriate restrictions near local retail 

establishments) 

• Sustainable Economy (by improving travel arrangements and reducing congestion) 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Hogarth 

Contact Officer(s) Andy Bracey x7323 

Recommendation to Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board:   

That the Board consider objections for the proposed changes, and agree with the Officer 

recommendations as set out in the table to paragraph 7. 

Reason for recommendation: The proposals are aimed at providing better management 

of the Public Highway, in line with the Highway Code and current legislation.  

Introduction and Background 

1 The District Council has received a number of requests for changes to parking 

restrictions at various locations across the District. 

2 There are proposals in a number of Parishes and Towns across the District; 

Crockenhill, Edenbridge, Farningham, Sevenoaks, Swanley and Westerham 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 

3 The changes in each Parish are not large enough to warrant a review of parking in 

a wider area, and so have waited until a package of similar measures could be 

compiled. We are now in a position to address these issues. 

The proposed changes 

4 The proposals at each location are shown in Appendix A 

Consultation on the proposed changes 

5 Details of the consultations carried out at each location, a summary of the 

responses and a recommendation for each location are shown in Appendix B, and 

the full text of each response is within Appendix C. (Due to the size of this 

appendix, it has not been printed with the agenda but is published online and a 

paper copy has been placed in the Members’ Room)  

6 The purpose of bringing these responses to the Board is for the Board to consider 

objections, and to; 

• uphold the objections and abandon the proposals 

• Note objections and amend the proposals to address the concerns, and 

implement the amended proposals. (It should be noted that it is only 

possible to amend proposals by reduction only. Any extension to the 

proposed restrictions or change of type of restriction would form a new 

proposal and require re-advertisement.) 

• Set aside the objections and agree the implementation as proposed. 

No decision is required from the Board at the locations where no objections were 

received, but these locations have been included for information. 

7 The locations, issues and recommendations are summarised in the following 

table, which includes the locations where a decision is required..  

 Plan ref Issue Recommendation Decision 

Required 

Board 

Decision 

1. Sevenoaks 

5 Granville Road 

Obstructive parking Implement No  

2. Sevenoaks 

Dartford Road 

Change to parking bay 

layout following 

development 

Implement No  

3. Sevenoaks 

High Street Loading Bay 

New evening taxi facility Abandon 

proposals 

No  

4. Sevenoaks 

High Street Market Bay 

Changes to accommodate 

the Sevenoaks Market 

Implement No  

5. Sevenoaks 

St Botolphs 

Obstructive parking Implement No  

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



 

 Plan ref Issue Recommendation Decision 

Required 

Board 

Decision 

6. Sevenoaks 

Mount Harry Road 

Obstructive parking Implement No  

7. Sevenoaks 

Avenue Road 

New vehicle access through 

parking bays and the 

removal of a redundant 

disabled bay 

Implement No  

8. Sevenoaks 

Vine Court Road 

Obstructive parking Implement No  

9. Sevenoaks 

Robyns Way 

Obstructive parking Implement No  

10. Sevenoaks 

Morewood Close 

Changes associated with a 

new property development 

Implement No  

11. Edenbridge 

Hilders Lane & 

Ashcombe Drive 

Parking around the junction Implement No  

12. Edenbridge 

Mill Hill (near Fairfield 

Close) 

Changes associated with a 

new property development 

Implement No  

13. Sevenoaks 

68 Granville Road 

New vehicle access through 

parking bays 

Set aside 

objection and 

implement 

Yes  

14. Sevenoaks 

Victoria Road 

New vehicle access through 

driveways 

Set aside 

objection and 

implement 

Yes  

15. Sevenoaks 

Cramptons Road 

Minor alterations to a 

disabled bay 

Set aside 

objection and 

implement 

Yes  

16. Sevenoaks 

Moor Road 

Changes to provide more 

parking and to 

accommodate the 

redevelopment of the 

former Ambulance station 

site 

Set aside 

objection and 

implement 

Yes  

17. Swanley 

Sycamore Drive 

Reduction in parking bays 

to improve vehicle 

movements 

Seek views of 

KCC members 

Yes  

18. Edenbridge 

Hillcrest Road 

Parking around the junction Amend 

proposals, set 

aside objections 

and implement 

Yes  

19. Farningham 

High Street 

Parking in bus stops Set aside 

objection and 

implement 

Yes  

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



 

 Plan ref Issue Recommendation Decision 

Required 

Board 

Decision 

20. Sevenoaks 

The Drive 

New vehicle access through 

parking bays 

Amend 

proposals, set 

aside objection 

and implement 

Yes  

21. Sevenoaks 

Barrack Corner area 

Alterations to parking to 

provide more short-stay 

parking to support local 

businesses and measures 

to reduce obstruction 

Amend 

proposals, set 

aside objections 

and implement 

Yes  

22. Swanley 

Oakleigh Close 

Obstructive parking Amend 

proposals, set 

aside objections 

and implement 

Yes  

23. Crockenhill 

Broadway 

Adjustment to times of 

restrictions 

Abandon 

proposals * 

No *  

24. Edenbridge 

Main Road & Brownings 

Junction protection, visibilty 

protection and disabled 

parking 

Amend 

proposals, set 

aside objections 

and implement 

Yes  

25. Edenbridge 

Mill Hill, Ashbys Close, 

Victoria Road & 

Waterlakes 

Parking around the junction Set aside 

objection and 

implement 

Yes  

26. Farningham 

Teardrop Centre 

Obstructive parking Implement * No *  

27. Westerham 

Bartlett Road & 

Delagarde Road 

Long stay parking causing 

problems for residents 

Set aside 

objections and 

implement 

Yes  

28. Westerham 

The Green 

Relocation of Police parking 

bay and alterations to 

parking bays 

Set aside 

objections and 

implement 

Yes  

29. Westerham 

Black Eagle Close 

Obstructive parking Set aside 

objections and 

implement 

Yes  

30. Westerham 

The Paddock 

New disabled parking bay Implement No  

31. Westerham 

Farley Nursery 

Obstructive parking Set aside 

objections and 

implement 

Yes  

8 The locations 23 (for Broadway) and 26 (Teardrop Centre) are marked with (*) to 

indicate that the local member or Parish Council have added additional 

information, outside the terms of the consultation.  

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



 

With regard to the proposal for Broadway, Crockenhill 

9 The only responses received during the consultation were objections, but the 

grounds for these were quite “light”. Cllr Lindsay and the Parish Council 

commented that they would still support the proposals, and that the local owners 

of the Post Office had also commented in support of the changes, and that the 

proposals should not be abandoned. 

With regard to the Teardrop Centre, Farningham 

10 The Parish Council commented against the proposal, but only did so outside the 

consultation period.  They commented that the proposals were unnecessary due to 

closure of one of the commercial premises at the Teardrop Centre. However, the 

requirements for access for the Highway depot along the Teardrop Centre access 

road remain and it is still recommended that the proposed restrictions are 

introduced. 

11 As an objection to an “at any time” loading ban, objections received during the 

consultation period would trigger a public enquiry in to the proposal, but as the 

Parish’s response was outside the consultation dates this is not necessary. It is 

suggested that the County Members and the Officers from KCC indicate whether 

this proposals should be implemented as drawn to protect access or be 

abandoned. 

Implementation 

12 The proposals that have been reported for information, and those where the Board 

have agreed to be taken forward will now be prepared for implementation. 

13 Due to changes within the Parking Services team, it is likely that there may be 

some delay in the introduction of the changes, but it is hoped that these would 

appear on-street during the Summer 2015. 

Key Implications 

Financial 

The costs of implementing the changes varies with the decision of the Board as to which 

proposals to implement, but if all proposals are taken forward to implementation, the 

expected implication is for; 

• approximately 7 days of road marking work, at £750 per day 

• and approximately £3200 in changes to on-street signs and posts (some of which 

would be the removal of redundant street furniture). 

The costs of implementation would be met from the District’s on-street parking account.  

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.  

The District Council has to be aware of the conflict between differing legislation and the 

decisions of other Authorities, particularly related to planning issues and access to the 

public highway. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



 

In locations where the Highway Authority has granted permission for a vehicle crossover, 

they also establish a right of access to the highway, and this needs to be remembered 

when altering parking restrictions to reflect that new access. Any objections may be for 

valid reasons, but these have to be considered as secondary to the right of access. 

There are no additional risks identified that are outside those already covered within the 

standard Risk Assessment for carrying out parking enforcement on the Public Highway. 

Equality Assessment  

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to the 

substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users. 

 

Key Implications 

Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults.   

Some of the proposals deal with the introduction or amendment of on-street disabled 

parking facilities, in line with the County Council’s policy and criteria for the provision of 

disabled parking bays. 

 

Appendices Appendix A – Plans of proposals 

Appendix B – Location Summaries 

Appendix C – Consultation responses (available in a 

hardcopy in the Members’ Room and electronically 

on the Council’s website) 

Background Papers: The Traffic Signs Regulations & General Directions 

2002 (as amended) 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/3113  

 

The Highways Act 1980 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66  

 

The Road Traffic Act 1988 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1988/52  

 

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (as 
amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1984/27  

 

The Traffic Management Act 2004 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/18  

 

The Highway Code 

https://www.gov.uk/browse/driving/highway-code  

Richard Wilson 

Chief Officer, Environmental & Operational Services 

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



74

62

45

GRANVILLE
ROAD

68

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/S

ev
en

oa
ks

D
at

e 
: 2

6/
7/

13
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: S

ev
en

oa
ks

 - 
G

ra
nv

ill
e 

R
oa

d 
- 2

60
61

4.
pd

f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

68
 G

ra
nv

ill
e 

R
oa

d
Se

ve
no

ak
s

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

"N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

N
ew

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
cc

es
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

by
 K

en
t C

ou
nt

y 
Co

un
ci

l t
o 

be
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d,
 re

qu
iri

ng
 th

e
al

te
ra

tio
n 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 b

ay
s 

an
d

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 d

ou
bl

e
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s

Pr
op

os
ed

 "N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

Ex
is

tin
g 

"li
m

ite
d 

w
ai

tin
g"

 (p
ar

ki
ng

ba
ys

) M
on

-S
at

, 8
.3

0-
6.

30
 a

nd
 A

re
a

A 
pe

rm
its

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



BE
EC

H
 R

O
ADVICTORIA ROAD

24

12

6767a
67b

67c

10b

1
3

5
1

7
14

3533

15
23

7

6-8

10a

P

&

D

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/S

ev
en

oa
ks

D
at

e 
: 2

6/
4/

13
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: S

ev
en

oa
ks

 - 
Vi

ct
or

ia
 R

oa
d 

- 2
60

61
4.

pd
f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
oa

d
Se

ve
no

ak
s

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Pa
rk

in
g 

ba
ys

 to
 b

e 
re

du
ce

d
an

d 
do

ub
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
to

 b
e

ex
te

nd
ed

 to
 c

ov
er

 v
eh

ic
le

ac
ce

ss
 th

at
 is

 b
ei

ng
 b

ro
ug

ht
ba

ck
 in

 to
 u

se
.

Ex
is

tin
g 

Pe
rm

it 
H

ol
de

rs
 O

nl
y 

(a
re

a
A)

, M
on

-S
at

, 8
.3

0a
m

-9
.3

0p
m

Ex
is

tin
g 

no
 w

ai
tin

g 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e,
 n

o
lo

ad
in

g 
(8

am
-9

:1
5a

m
 &

5p
m

-6
.3

0p
m

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

Ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
ce

ss

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



CRAMPTON'S ROAD

13
3

14
7

152 140

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/S

ev
en

oa
ks

/4
D

at
e 

: 1
9/

2/
14

D
ra

w
n 

by
 : 

AC
B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: S

ev
en

oa
ks

 - 
Cr

am
pt

on
s 

R
oa

d 
26

06
14

.p
df

 

Ke
y

Cr
am

pt
on

s 
R

oa
d

Se
ve

no
ak

s
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

"d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y"

Pr
op

os
ed

 e
nl

ar
ge

d 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
ba

y"
 to

 m
ee

t c
ur

re
nt

 re
gu

la
tio

ns

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

D
is

ab
le

d 
ba

y 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

m
ee

t c
ur

re
nt

 re
gu

la
tio

n 
si

ze

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Am
bu

la
nc

e
St

at
io

n

MOOR ROAD

2a
2b

2c

131

178 164

2
12

Fo
rm

er

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/S

ev
en

oa
ks

/4
D

at
e 

: 1
9/

2/
14

D
ra

w
n 

by
 : 

AC
B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: S

ev
en

oa
ks

 - 
M

oo
r R

oa
d 

26
06

14
.p

df
 

Ke
y

M
oo

r R
oa

d
Se

ve
no

ak
s

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-S
at

,
8.

30
-6

.3
0 

(s
in

gl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

Ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 to

al
lo

w
 p

ar
ki

ng

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

Ex
is

tin
g 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

re
vo

ke
d,

 to
be

co
m

e 
fr

ee
 p

ar
ki

ng

D
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 th
e 

co
rn

er

D
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 fr
on

t o
f a

cc
es

s

D
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 b
ot

h 
si

de
s 

of
 ro

ad

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 32

Agenda Item 5



St
 B

ar
th

ol
om

ew
s

RC
 P

rim
ar

y S
ch

oo
l

H
ol

y 
Ap

os
tle

s
Ca

th
ol

ic
 C

hu
rc

h

SYCAMORE DRIVE

BA
RT

HO
LO

M
EW

 W
AY

Ke
nn

et
 C

ou
rt

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e1
:5

00
 @

 A
4

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/S

w
an

le
y D
at

e:
 2

/8
/1

3
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: S

w
an

le
y 

- S
yc

am
or

e 
D

riv
e 

- 2
60

61
4.

pd
f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

Sy
ca

m
or

e 
D

riv
e

Sw
an

le
y

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

Sc
ho

ol
 K

ee
p 

Cl
ea

r

Ex
is

tin
g 

lim
ite

d 
w

ai
tin

g,
M

on
-S

at
, 8

.3
0a

m
-6

.3
0p

m
,

1h
r/

1h
r &

 R
es

id
en

t p
er

m
its

Ex
is

tin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
ys

 to
 b

e
re

du
ce

d 
by

 8
m

 a
nd

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
lin

es
 e

xt
en

d 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y 
to

 re
du

ce
qu

eu
in

g 
an

d 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

at
 th

e
ju

nc
tio

n

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



1

1

B 2026

Po
pl

ar
s

D
ev

on
ia

PW
Cl

ub

H
IL

LC
R

ES
T 

R
O

ADTh
e 

Br
ia

rs

Tr
al

ee

D
ep

ot

Derwent

Rustlings

Th
e 

O
ld

Pa
rs

on
ag

e

Ec
cl

es

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/E

de
nb

rid
ge

D
at

e 
: 2

0/
2/

14
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: E

de
nb

rid
ge

 - 
H

ill
cr

es
t R

oa
d 

A 
- 2

60
61

4.
pd

f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

H
ill

cr
es

t R
oa

d
Ed

en
br

id
ge

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
te

nd
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 p

ar
ki

ng
 o

n 
th

e
so

ut
h 

si
de

 n
ea

r t
o 

th
e

ju
nc

tio
n

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

6/
14

D
YL

 e
xt

en
de

d
A

AC
B

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 34

Agenda Item 5



M
an

or
H

ou
se

 C
ot

ta
ge

Vi
lla

ge
H

al
l

Th
e

Cottage

Rablus Place

PH
W

hi
te

H
ou

se

Th
e

M
ill

H
ou

se

Owl Cotta
ge Cherry Tre

e Cotta
ge

Li
on

H
ot

el
HIG

H

STR
EET

PH
Li

on
Co

tt
ag

es

Ga
rd

en
er

s

Co
tta

ge

M
ill

Co
tta

ge
s

1

1
2 3

1
2

1a
1

7

Br
id

ge
Co

tt

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

Co
tta

ge

HIGH STR
EET

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

10
00

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/F

ar
ni

ng
ha

m
D

at
e 

: 2
0/

2/
14

D
ra

w
n 

by
 : 

AC
B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: F

ar
ni

ng
ha

m
 - 

H
ig

h 
St

re
et

 - 
26

06
14

.p
df

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

H
ig

h 
St

re
et

Fa
rn

in
gh

am
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

bu
s 

st
op

 --
 to

 b
ec

om
e

en
fo

rc
ea

bl
e 

24
hr

 b
us

 s
to

p 
cl

ea
rw

ay

Ex
is

tin
g 

lim
ite

d 
w

ai
tin

g 
M

on
-S

at
,

8.
30

am
-5

pm
, 1

hr
 n

o 
re

tu
rn

 1
hr

Ex
is

tin
g 

bu
s 

st
op

s 
to

 b
ec

om
e

en
fo

rc
ea

bl
e 

bu
s 

st
op

cl
ea

rw
ay

s 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

ob
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

to
 a

llo
w

 a
m

or
e 

pr
ed

ic
ta

bl
e 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



13
6

58

64

53

66

134

LO
NDON R

OAD (T
UBS H

ILL
)

TH
E 

DR
IV

E

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/S

ev
en

oa
ks

D
at

e 
: 1

3/
3/

14
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: S

ev
en

oa
ks

 - 
Th

e 
D

riv
e 

- 2
60

61
4.

pd
f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

53
 T

he
 D

riv
e

Se
ve

no
ak

s
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

"N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

N
ew

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
cc

es
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

by
 K

en
t C

ou
nt

y 
Co

un
ci

l t
o 

be
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d,
 re

qu
iri

ng
 th

e
al

te
ra

tio
n 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 b

ay
s 

an
d

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 d

ou
bl

e
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s

Pr
op

os
ed

 "N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

Ex
is

tin
g 

"li
m

ite
d 

w
ai

tin
g"

 (p
ar

ki
ng

ba
ys

) M
on

-S
at

, 8
.3

0-
6.

30
 a

nd
 A

re
a

E 
pe

rm
its

Ex
is

tin
g 

"N
o 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

 - 
Sa

t,
8.

30
am

 - 
6.

30
pm

" (
si

ng
le

 y
el

lo
w

lin
es

)

Pr
op

os
ed

 n
ew

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
cc

es
s

N
ew

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 re
si

de
nt

 to
pr

ot
ec

t e
xi

st
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ac

ce
ss

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 36

Agenda Item 5



2

93

95

1

5

15

1

8
2

2a
56

44

46

44

5

31d

31a

2

14

1
11

23

44

30
26

38

31

30

5

25

19
1

28

23

29

30

32

1

26

1

12

14

24d
24b

Daycare Nursery

ST JOHN'S ROAD

BARRACK CORNER

PR
OS

PE
CT

 R
OA

D

CO
BD

EN
 R

OA
D

The Old Timber Top

Kingdom

Hall

Cedar

Villa

Hay
es

Cott
age

CEDAR TERRACE ROAD

PO

Cedar
End Friends

Meeting
House

31b 31c

24c
24a

Cobden Road
Centre

29
c

Poppy Cottage

10
10a

12
12a

14
14a

BRADBOURNE ROAD

ST
 JO

H
N

'S
 H

IL
L

D
AR

TF
O

R
D

 R
O

AD

MOUNT HARRY ROAD

HOLLY BUSH LANE
COBDEN ROAD

PR
O

SP
EC

T 
R

O
AD

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown
Copyright 2000.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Date Revision Ref Drawn

Title

Scale 1:1000
File ref : T/Sevenoaks/4

Date : 2/10/14
Drawn by : ACB

File name : Sevenoaks - Barrack Corner 021014.pdf 

Key

Formal Consultation - Barrack Corner area

Sevenoaks

Existing "No waiting at any time"
(double yellow line)

Changes to parking restrictions

Holly Bush Lane, Dartford Rd, St Johns Rd

Existing Area M permit & 2hr
limit waiting to be removed,
to allow uncontrolled parking

Existing uncontrolled parking
to become 1hr limited
waiting, Mon-Sat, 8.30-6.30,
to provide more short-stay
parking

Existing double yellow lines to
become 1hr limited waiting,
Mon-Sat, 8.30-6.30, to provide
more short-stay parking

Double yellow lines to replace
single yellow lines to prevent
obstruction for large vehicles

New double yellow lines to
prevent parking in front of
accesses

Zebra crossing

Existing "No waiting, Mon-Sat,
8.30am-6.30pm" (single yellow line)

Existing Bus Stop Clearway

Existing "Limited Waiting, Mon-Sat,
8.30-6.30, 1hour, not return within 1
hour" (short stay parking bay)

Proposed "Limited Waiting, Mon-Sat,
8.30-6.30, 1hour, not return within 1
hour" (short stay parking bay)

Existing "Limited Waiting, Mon-Sat,
8.30-6.30, 2 hour, no return within 1
hour" and Area M permits (short stay and
permit  parking bay)

Proposed uncontrolled parking (available
for long-stay)

Existing vehicle access (driveway)

3 spaces

2 spaces

2 spaces

3-4 spaces

8 
sp

ac
es

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



Th
e

W
oo

dl
an

ds

HO
LL

YT
RE

E

SYCAMORE DRIVE

21 to 27

W
hi

te
oa

k 
Co

ur
t

1 
to

 5
1

OAKLE
IG

H C
LO

SE

1

2

7

49
33

1

2

3

5

PIO
NEE

R W
AY

34

40

36

41

9

12

20

26

13

19

Ke
nn

et
 C

ou
rt

1 
to

 7
4

9

15

19

Th
e

W
oo

dl
an

ds

37 to 43

51

70

62 to 68

14

22
20

26

28
30

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

10
00

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/S

w
an

le
yD
at

e 
:1

9/
9/

13
 

D
ra

w
n 

by
 : 

AC
B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: S

w
an

le
y 

- O
ak

le
ig

h 
Cl

os
e 

A 
26

06
14

.p
df

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
 - 

Fo
rm

al
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n
O

ak
le

ig
h 

Cl
os

e
Sw

an
le

y
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

"N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

Pr
op

os
ed

 "N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

Pr
op

os
ed

 "N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

M
on

-F
ri,

11
am

-N
oo

n"
 (s

in
gl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

)

6/
14

SY
L 

ad
de

d
A

AC
B

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 38

Agenda Item 5



1

7

M
AI

N
 R

O
AD

Garage

BROADWAY

Ch
ar

w
yn

Ca
rtr

ef
Br

el
ad

e

D
el

ta
Na

vo
lo

k

Co
ls

to
n

Tr
el

oa
rly 1

3

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/C

ro
ck

en
hi

ll
D

at
e 

:2
0/

2/
14

 
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: C

ro
ck

en
hi

ll 
- B

ro
ad

w
ay

 A
 2

60
61

4.
pd

f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
 - 

Fo
rm

al
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n
Br

oa
dw

ay
Cr

oc
ke

nh
ill

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

"N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

(d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s)

Ex
is

tin
g 

"b
us

 s
to

p 
cl

ea
rw

ay
"

Ex
is

tin
g 

"L
im

ite
d 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-S
at

,
8.

30
am

-6
.3

0p
m

, 2
hr

, n
o 

re
tu

rn
 1

hr
"

Pr
op

os
ed

 "L
im

ite
d 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-S
at

,
7a

m
-1

0p
m

, 1
hr

 n
o 

re
tu

rn
 1

 h
r"

Ex
is

tin
g 

"N
o 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-F
ri,

 8
-9

am
&

 3
-4

pm
" (

si
ng

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
)

Ex
is

tin
g 

"D
is

ab
le

d 
ba

y"

Li
m

ite
d 

w
ai

tin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
y

tim
es

 o
f o

pe
ra

tio
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

fr
om

 8
:3

0a
m

 to
 7

am
 in

 th
e

m
or

ni
ng

 a
nd

 fr
om

 6
.3

0p
m

 to
10

pm
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

in
g,

 a
nd

m
ax

im
um

 s
ta

y 
re

du
ce

d 
fr

om
2 

ho
ur

s 
to

 1
 h

ou
r t

o 
im

pr
ov

e
pa

rk
in

g 
tu

rn
ov

er
 fo

r
cu

st
om

er
s 

at
 lo

ca
l s

ho
ps

6/
14

M
or

ni
ng

 ti
m

es
 c

ha
ng

ed
A

AC
B

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



Cottages
South View 3

1

2
1

Sp
rin

g 
Co

tts

4

1

MAIN ROAD

B 2026

17

PO12

6
1

5Re
ge

nt
s

Co
tta

ge
s

11

13

LYNMEAD
CLOSE

D
ev

on
ia

Fi
rs

Lo
dg

e

Th
e 

St
ab

le
s

Tr
al

ee

D
ep

ot

Ec
cl

es
Ho

us
e

Derwent

Rustlings
Weathertop

La
ve

nd
er

Co
tt

ag
e

D
ee

si
de

BR
O

W
N

IN
G

S
Lamorna
Pickwick
Appledowne

B 2026

18

116

1

Hy
at

t
Ty

th
er

in
gt

on

Li
nd

en

Li
ttl

e 
Ch

ar
t

M
ay

ho
us

e

Ec
cl

es
En

d

Rowendine

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Se
ve

no
ak

s
D

 I 
S 

T 
R

 I 
C 

T 
   

C 
O

 U
 N

 C
 I 

L

Sc
al

e 
1:

10
00

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/E

de
nb

rid
ge

D
at

e 
: 7

/8
/1

3
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: E

de
nb

rid
ge

 - 
M

ai
n 

R
oa

d 
&

 B
ro

w
ni

ng
s 

A 
- 2

60
61

4.
pd

f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

M
ai

n 
R

oa
d 

&
 B

ro
w

ni
ng

s
Ed

en
br

id
ge

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

un
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y

N
ew

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
pr

ev
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 a
ro

un
d

ac
ce

ss
esN
ew

 d
is

ab
le

d
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y

N
ew

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
pr

ev
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 th

e
en

tr
an

ce
 to

 T
he

 B
ro

w
ni

ng
s

6/
14

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 re
m

ov
ed

A
AC

B

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 40

Agenda Item 5



Ka
th

er
in

e
Vi

lla
s VI
CT

O
R

IA
 R

D

Vi
ct

or
ia

Co
tt

ag
es

Victoria
Close

Ed
en

Co
tt

ag
e

M
ill

 H
ill

 C
ot

ta
ge

s

W
AT

ER
LA

KE
S

M
ill

 C
ou

rt
Fi

ve
 M

ill
 H

ill
Oa

k 
Vi

lla
M

ill 
Hi

ll H
ou

se

Th
e 

Ne
w H

ou
se

Ed
en

 H
ou

se

W
ic

ke
n 

Co
tt

ag
e

ROBYNS W
AY

36

20
4

2

4

3

1

6

1

1

12

14

10

13 to 20

to 12

1

3

9

Th
e 

M
ill

io
ns

AS
HB

Y'
S 

CL
OS

E

Th
e 

Kn
ol

l

HE
VE

R 
RO

AD

O
ak

la
nd

s

M
on

ta
na

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

10
00

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/E

de
nb

rid
ge

D
at

e 
: 2

9/
5/

13
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: E

de
nb

rid
ge

 - 
M

ill
 H

ill
 2

 A
 - 

26
06

14
.p

df

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

M
ill

 H
ill

 (A
sh

by
s 

Cl
os

e,
 W

at
er

la
ke

s 
&

 V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d)
Ed

en
br

id
ge

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

no
 w

ai
tin

g,
 8

.3
0a

m
-6

.3
0p

m

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

N
ew

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

 to
pr

ev
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 o
n 

bo
th

 s
id

es
of

 n
ar

ro
w

 a
cc

es
s 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 in
fr

on
t o

f d
riv

ew
ay

s

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

bu
s 

st
op

 c
le

ar
w

ay

N
ew

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
pr

ev
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 n

ar
ro

w
ac

ce
ss

 ro
ad

N
ew

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
pr

ev
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 o
n 

bo
th

 s
id

es
of

 a
cc

es
s 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 o
pp

os
ite

dr
iv

ew
ay

Ex
is

tin
g 

si
ng

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

up
da

te
d 

to
 n

ew
 d

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

lin
es

  t
o 

pr
ev

en
t p

ar
ki

ng
 a

ro
un

d
ju

nc
tio

ns

6/
14

D
YL

s 
ch

an
ge

d
A

AC
B

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



H
ig

hw
ay

s
D

ep
ot

LO
ND

ON
 R

OA
D

A 
20

A 
20

 L
O

N
D

O
N

 R
O

AD

Te
ar

dr
op

 C
en

tr
e

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/F

ar
ni

ng
ha

m
D

at
e 

: 7
/7

/1
4

D
ra

w
n 

by
 : 

AC
B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: F

ar
ni

ng
ha

m
 - 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

Te
ar

dr
op

 C
en

tr
e 

- 0
70

71
4.

pd
f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

Te
ar

dr
op

 C
en

tr
e

Fa
rn

in
gh

am
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 "N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e,

no
 lo

ad
in

g 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e"
 d

ou
bl

e
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
an

d 
do

ub
le

 k
er

b 
"b

lip
s"

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s 

to
be

co
m

e 
"N

o 
w

ai
tin

g 
an

d 
no

lo
ad

in
g 

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e"

, t
o

pr
ev

en
t o

bs
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 e

xi
t o

f t
he

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
de

po
t f

or
 v

eh
ic

le
s

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 e
m

er
ge

nc
ie

s 
on

th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

N
ew

 "N
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

an
d 

no
lo

ad
in

g 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
ob

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
ex

it 
of

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
de

po
t f

or
ve

hi
cl

es
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
em

er
ge

nc
ie

s 
on

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 42

Agenda Item 5



910
1115

12
34

5
8

910
11
12

13 14
15 16

18
20

21

BA
R

TL
ET

T 
R

O
AD

D
EL

AG
AR

D
E 

R
O

AD

Fi
re

St
at

io
n

B 2024

12

P&D

P&D

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/W

es
te

rh
am

/4
D

at
e 

: 2
6/

4/
13

D
ra

w
n 

by
 : 

AC
B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: W

es
te

rh
am

 - 
Ba

rt
le

tt
 R

oa
d 

- 2
70

61
4.

pd
f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

Ba
rt

le
tt

 R
oa

d 
&

 D
el

ag
ar

de
 R

oa
d

W
es

te
rh

am
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

P&
D

 a
nd

 p
er

m
it 

pa
rk

in
g

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 'W
2 

pe
rm

it 
ho

ld
er

s 
on

ly
'

pa
rk

in
g,

 M
on

-S
at

, 8
.3

0a
m

-6
.3

0p
m

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 43

Agenda Item 5



11

1

2
4

2

1

8

M
AR

KE
T 

SQ
UA

R
E

A 233

PH

VI
CA

RA
GE

 H
IL

L

TH
E 

GR
EE

N

Bk

4 P

&

D

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Se
ve

no
ak

s
D

 I 
S 

T 
R

 I 
C 

T 
   

C 
O

 U
 N

 C
 I 

L

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0@

A4
Fi

le
 re

f :
 T

/W
es

te
rh

am
/4

D
at

e 
: 5

/0
8/

08
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: W

es
te

rh
am

 - 
Th

e 
G

re
en

 - 
27

06
14

.p
df

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

Th
e 

G
re

en
W

es
te

rh
am

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-S
at

,

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

8.
30

am
-6

.3
0p

m

Ex
is

tin
g 

pa
y 

&
 d

is
pl

ay
 a

nd
 

pe
rm

it 
pa

rk
in

g

Pr
op

os
ed

 N
o 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-S
at

,
8.

30
am

-6
.3

0p
m

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

po
lic

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y
to

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

 p
ol

ic
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

R
el

oc
at

ed
 P

ol
ic

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y
to

 a
cc

om
od

at
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ol
ic

e
st

at
io

n 
ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r

op
er

at
io

na
l v

eh
ic

le
s

N
ew

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

at
en

d 
of

 p
at

hw
ay

 a
cr

os
s 

gr
ee

n
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 o
bs

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e
pa

th

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 44

Agenda Item 5



H
ill

si
de

Lo
dg

e

Pitt's

Little

Pitts

Moretons End
Great Moretons

Moretons

Fa
rle

y 
Lo

dg
e

Park View R
os

in
gs

W
es

t C
ot

t

Moreton

Cottage

PH

Br
ew

er
y

Co
tta

ge
s

Po
nd

10
4

3
1

4
1

2

101

54

46

30
32 18

234

44

BLACK EAGLE CLOSE

Fa
lc

on
 H

ou
se

Os
pr

ey
 H

ou
se

M
er

rie
fie

ld

50

Moretons

Br
ew

er
y 

Ho
us

e

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

10
00

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/W

es
te

rh
am

D
at

e 
: 2

0/
8/

14
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: W

es
te

rh
am

 - 
Bl

ac
k 

Ea
gl

e 
Cl

os
e 

- 2
00

81
4.

pd
f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n
Bl

ac
k 

Ea
gl

e 
Cl

os
e

W
es

te
rh

am
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 45

Agenda Item 5



12

14 to 17

18 to 21

22 to 25

26

12

Fir C
ottage

Su
nn

ys
id

e

Re
dw

oo
d 

Bu
ng

al
ow

Sp
rin

g-
m

ea
d

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/W

es
te

rh
am

D
at

e 
: 3

/1
0/

14
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: W

es
te

rh
am

 - 
Th

e 
Pa

dd
oc

k 
- 0

31
01

4.
pd

f

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Fo

rm
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

Th
e 

Pa
dd

oc
k

W
es

te
rh

am
If 

yo
u 

fin
d 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
or

 c
ol

ou
rs

 c
on

fu
si

ng
, p

le
as

e 
tr

y 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

on
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
w

w
w

.s
ev

en
oa

ks
.g

ov
.u

k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
o 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-S
at

,
8.

30
-6

.3
0p

m
 (s

in
gl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

)

Ex
is

tin
g 

Li
m

ite
d 

w
ai

tin
g,

 M
on

-S
at

,
8.

30
-6

.3
0p

m
 a

nd
 W

2 
pe

rm
it

ho
ld

er
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 46

Agenda Item 5



N
or

th
le

ig
h

Br
ad

e
Co

tt
ag

e

Ch
er

ry
Tr

ee
Co

tt
ag

e

Sc
ea

rn
e

W
ES

TB
UR

Y
TE

R
R

AC
E

FARLEY NURSERY

7
12 20

17

13

8

4

1

Co
tt

ag
e

Pi
ck

et
ts

R
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
Co

py
rig

ht
 2

00
0.

Un
au

th
or

is
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
Cr

ow
n 

Co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

le
ad

 to
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.

D
at

e
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

Ti
tle

Sc
al

e 
1:

50
0

Fi
le

 re
f :

 T
/W

es
te

rh
am

D
at

e 
: 1

8/
9/

14
D

ra
w

n 
by

 : 
AC

B

Fi
le

 n
am

e 
: W

es
te

rh
am

 - 
Fa

rle
y 

N
ur

se
ry

 - 
18

09
14

.p
df

Ke
y

Pr
op

os
ed

 W
ai

tin
g 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 - 
Co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n
Fa

rle
y 

N
ur

se
ry

 a
nd

 W
es

tb
ur

y 
Te

rr
ac

e
W

es
te

rh
am

If 
yo

u 
fin

d 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

or
 c

ol
ou

rs
 c

on
fu

si
ng

, p
le

as
e 

tr
y 

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
on

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

oa
ks

.g
ov

.u
k

Ex
is

tin
g 

do
ub

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s

Ex
is

tin
g 

si
ng

le
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
 (M

on
-S

at
,

8.
30

am
-6

.3
0p

m
)

Sevenoaks JTB - 10 March 2015 TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Plans of Proposals Appendix A

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-01 

Location Granville Road (near No.5) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - 5 Granville Road - 260713 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

Issue 

The District Council has had a request to introduce new parking restrictions near to the access to 

No.5 Granville Road to prevent obstructive parking. 

Requested by 

Local resident 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 31 Responses 2 (6.5%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (100%) 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should 

proceed to formal consultation. 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks - 5 Granville Road - 260614 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 31 Responses 2 (6%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (100%) 

As the responses were in favour of the proposed changes and no objections were 

received, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the 

Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 49

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-03 

Location Dartford Road (outside Sackville Place) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - Dartford Road - 260713 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

Issue 

During the construction of Sackville Place, the parking layout in the lay-by was altered. 

This area used to be covered by 2 hour limited waiting, but during construction the layout 

of the area was changed, and since then the time limit has not been enforceable. 

The Council is now looking to re-instate the 2 hour limited waiting in the laybys, along 

with the facility to issue parking permits. We are also looking to introduce new double 

yellow lines in the areas where parking would cause an obstruction. 

Requested by 

Local resident and KCC’s Agreements Team 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 26 Responses 1 (3.8%) 

Not in favour 1 (100%) 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The objection suggested that there ought to be a different type of restriction introduced – 

that the area should be subject to pay and display parking and that some of the bays 

should be for the exclusive use of the residents of Sackville Place and Pavilion Gardens. 

However, the Sackville Place and Pavilion Gardens developments already have their own 

private parking areas for their exclusive use. The intention is to return the parking bays to 

their former “limited waiting” usage, but with the addition of permit parking availability, 

similar to those parking bays at the eastern end of St Botolph’s Road 

Accordingly, it is recommended that the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Dartford Road A - 260614 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 26 Responses 2 (8%) 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 50

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

In favour of proposals 2 (100%) 

As the responses were in favour of the proposed changes and no objections were 

received, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the 

Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 51

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-04 

Location High Street (near the Oak Tree pub) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - High Street Loading Bay - 

260413 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has been asked to look at the parking restrictions in the town to see if better 

use can be made of them. As part of this process it was established that there was a lack 

of facilities for taxis during the evenings. 

To address this we are proposing that the existing loading bay near the Oak Tree pub be 

used as a taxi rank overnight. This is a time when loading does not take place and where 

there is a high demand for taxis. 

Requested by 

Sevenoaks District Council’s Licensing Team (who manage Taxi facilities) 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 28 Responses 1 (3.6%) 

Not in favour 1 (100%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The one comment against the proposal suggested that there should be a taxi rank 

provided in Blighs car park rather than on-street as there are a lot of pedestrians that 

cross the road near the Oak Tree pub in the evenings. 

 

However, the issue relates to dealing with those emerging from the local pubs and 

restaurants, and the need to disperse them as easily and conveniently as possible to 

prevent public order issues. A taxi facility in Blighs car park is likely to be too far away to 

be practical.  

 

Additionally, the car park is already used in to the evenings and introducing a taxi rank 

would reduce parking capacity. 

 

Accordingly it is recommended that the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 52

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – High Street Loading Bay – 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 28 Responses 2 (7%) 

Not in favour 2 (100%) 

 

The formal consultation responses indicate that the evening parking arrangements in 

Sevenoaks town centre are not straightforward, and a feeling that the stated need for 

taxi facilities at the proposed location was no longer in place due to a change in 

ownership and clientele of a nearby pub. 

 

Additionally, one of the local Councillors for the area, Cllr Fleming indicated that he was 

not in support of the proposed change. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

Given the objections and the lack of support from one of the Councillors for the area, it is 

recommended that the objections are upheld and the proposals are abandoned. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-05 

Location High Street (near The Chequers pub) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - High Street Market Bay - 

260413 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has been asked to look at the parking restrictions in the town to see if better 

use can be made of them. As part of this process it was established that there was a 

problem with overnight parking in the layby by The Chequers pub on Friday nights. 

Overnight parking was causing problems for the Saturday Market stall holders, as the 

cars were often not moved by the time the market sets up. 

To address this we are proposing that the restrictions are changed to prevent parking by 

all but market permit holders on Saturdays from 2am until 6.30pm, as this would allow 

us to issue penalties to any vehicles that are not associated with the market. 

 

Requested by 

Sevenoaks District Council’s Direct Services (who facilitate the Market) 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 31 Responses 0 (0%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should 

proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – High Street Market Bay - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 31 Responses 1 (3%) 

In favour of proposals 1 (100%) 

 

As the response was in favour of the proposed changes and no objections were received, 

it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the Portfolio 

Holder) be implemented. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 54

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-08 

Location St Botolph's Road (near St Botolph's Court) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - St Botolphs - 070613 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

Residents of St Botolph’s Court have reported visibility problems when emerging from 

their access when vehicles park too close.  Accordingly we are proposing to alter the 

parking bays to improve visibility. 

 

Requested by 

Local residents 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 14 Responses 6 (42.9%) 

In favour of proposals 6 (100%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should 

proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – St Botolphs - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 14 Responses 5 (36%) 

In favour of proposals 4 (80%) 

No view 1 (20%) 

 

The responses were in favour of the proposal, though there was one that suggested that 

the change would not make much difference, and asked for a traffic mirror to be 

installed. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The comment relating to the installation of a traffic mirror is outside the remit of the 

District Council, and would be an issue for the Highway Authority to address.   

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Given the lack of any objection during the formal consultation process, it is 

recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the Portfolio 

Holder) be implemented. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 56

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-09 

Location Mount Harry Road (near No.108) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - Mount Harry Road - 200613 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The resident of No.108 Mount Harry Road has reported visibility problems when 

emerging from their access when vehicles park too close.  Accordingly we are proposing 

to alter the parking bays to improve visibility. 

 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 39 Responses 4 (10.3%) 

In favour of proposals 4 (100%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The comments received were broadly in favour of the proposals, but 2 residents 

requested that the parking bays be further reduced. 

 

Whilst we cannot accommodate a reduction to the extent that the residents wanted (as 

we have to maintain some facility in the area) we can reduce the bays further than 

originally proposed.  

 

Accordingly, the proposals should be adjusted to reduce the parking bays, and proceed 

to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Mount Harry Road A - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 39 Responses 4 (11%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (75%) 

No view 1 (25%) 

 

The responses were in favour of the proposal, though there was one that did not indicate 

a preference from a property on the opposite side of the road from the proposed 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 57

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

changes, that also raised the issue of traffic speed down Mount Harry Road and the 

limited visibility from their driveway. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The comments relating to visibilty from the driveway opposite and vehicle speeds are 

outside the remit of the District Council – that side of the road already has restrictions to 

prevent parking and any measures to improve visibilty would be within the resident’s own 

property, and concerns about speeding would be an issue for the Highway Authority to 

address.   

 

Given the lack of any objection during the formal consultation process, it is 

recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the Portfolio 

Holder) be implemented. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 58

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-10 

Location Avenue Road 

Ward Sevenoaks Eastern 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - Avenue Road - 200613 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

A new property has been constructed in Avenue Road, and Kent Highways have given 

permission for a new vehicle access on to Avenue Road. However, this new access 

requires the alteration of the existing permit parking bays in the road 

 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 12 Responses 3 (25%) 

Not in favour 3 (100%) 

Cllr Purves declined to comment as she is resident in the road. 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

As the Highway Authority has given permission for a new vehicle access to be 

constructed, the District Council has little choice other than to agree the alteration to the 

parking bays. 

 

The objections received from neighbours who have had other parking issues associated 

with a business that they operate from their property and a wish to widen their access 

and increase their own parking, and the fact that Kent County Council wished to charge 

them for the installation of a white access protection marking, rather than being relevant 

to the proposed change necessitated by the new vehicle access. 

 

There was also comment that the proposed access should not have double yellow lines 

in front of it – that a white line may be all that is necessary, and that a yellow line would 

detract from the visual appearance of the area. 

 

The inclusion of yellow lines in front of the access reflect calls that we have had in 

neighbouring roads to introduce similar lines to prevent obstructive parking, and would 

enable the District to take action against any vehicles parked there. The double yellow 

lines are not essential to the access, but would prevent obstructive parking in the future. 

 

Given the lengthy legal processes involved with the promotion of a traffic regulation 

order, it would seem better to introduce restrictions to deter obstruction and enable 

enforcement at the this stage when we are already engaged in the process, rather than 

potentially regret the omission of yellow lines in the near future, and not be able to 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 59

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

address the problem for some years, and at public expense rather than at the expense of 

the applicant. 

 

Accordingly, it is recommended that the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Avenue Road - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 12 Responses 2 (17%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (100%) 

 

As the responses were in favour of the proposed changes and no objections were 

received, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the 

Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 60

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-11 

Location Vine Court Road 

Ward Sevenoaks Eastern 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks – Vine Court Road - 260713 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

Residents on Vine Court Road have reported access problems when emerging from their 

access when vehicles park too close.  Accordingly we are proposing to extend restrictions 

to prevent obstructive parking. 

 

Requested by 

Local residents 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 9 Responses 3 (25%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (100%) 

One of the local Councillors for the area, Cllr Purves commented with no objection. 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should 

proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Vine Court Road - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 9 Responses 2 (22%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (100%) 

 

One of the comments included a request for additional parking restrictions to protect the 

second vehicle access to No.31, but there has also been pressure to minimise the 

introduction of restrictions where possible, and one of the accessess to No. 31 is already 

protected by double yellow lines so access to the highway should always be available. 

 

As the responses were in favour of the proposed changes and no objections were 

received, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the 

Portfolio Holder) be implemented, but the request for additional restrictions should not 

be taken further. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 61

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-12 

Location Robyns Way 

Ward Sevenoaks Northern 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks – Robyns Way - 200613 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to reduce the existing yellow lines in Robyns Way to 

prevent obstructive parking. 

 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 7 Responses 2 (28.6%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (100%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should 

proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Robyns Way - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 7 Responses 2 (29%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (100%) 

 

As the responses were in favour of the proposed changes and no objections were 

received, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the 

Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 62

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-15 

Location Morewood Close 

Ward Sevenoaks Kippington 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks – Morewood Close - 211113 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to make alterations to the existing parking arrangements 

in Morewood Close to accommodate the new vehicle access to the Redwood Place 

development on the former Police Station site. 

 

Requested by 

Developer & KCC Agreements Team 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 0 Responses 0 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should 

proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Morewood Close - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 63 Responses 0 

 

As there were no responses, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the 

agreement of the Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 63

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Edenbridge Reference Amend 2-19 

Location Hilders Lane & Ashcombe Drive 

Ward Edenbridge North & East 

Informal consultation plan ref. Edenbridge - Hilders Lane & Ashcombe 

Drive - 070813 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to introduce new restrictions to prevent parking around 

the junction of Hilders Lane and Ashcombe Drive. 

Requested by 

Councillor Jill Davison 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 13 Responses 7 (53.8%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (42.9%) 

Not in favour 4 (57.1%) 

 

Cllr Jill Davison also commented on the proposal, that the restrictions were excessive 

and only “junction protection” was required. 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The responses received were mixed – some residents close to the junction welcomed 

restricitons, whilst others commented that the parking acted as a valuable speed-

reducing measure. There were also concerns that parking could be displaced in to 

Ashcombe Drive. 

 

Given these comments, we have reduced the extents of the proposed double yellow 

lines, and  the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Edenbridge – Hilders Lane & Ashcombe Drive A - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 14 Responses 3 (7%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (67%) 

No view 1 (33%) 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 64

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

The responses were in favour of the proposal, though there was one that did not indicate 

a preference from a property further in to Ashcombe Drive, with concerns about potential 

parking displacement further in to the road. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

With any “junction protection” restrictions there is always a possibility of parking 

displacement in to the surrounding area, but parking at the side of a road, away from a 

junction is not uncommon, and is allowed where it does not cause an hazard or 

obstruction. 

 

Given the lack of any objection during the formal consultation process, it is 

recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the Portfolio 

Holder) be implemented. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 65

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Edenbridge Reference Amend 2-22 

Location Mill Hill (near Fairfield Close) 

Ward Edenbridge South & West 

Informal consultation plan ref. Edenbridge - Mill Hill - 260413 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to update the parking arrangements in Mill Hill near to the 

new access known as Fairfield Close to the development to the rear of Sheft’s Croft. 

 

Requested by 

Developer and KCC Agreements Team 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 18 Responses 2 (11.1%) 

In favour of proposals 1 (50%) 

Not in favour 1 (50%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The objection commented that there were already restrictions at this access and that 

changes were unnecessary. However, this does not take in to account that there are 

more properties accessed by the new road, and that appropriate junction protection 

should be considered. 

 

Accordingly, the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Edenbridge – Mill Hill A - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 18 Responses 0 

 

Edenbridge Town Council responded with “no comment” and Cllrs Orridge and Jill 

Davison both commented in favour of the proposal. 

 

As the responses were in favour of the proposed changes and no objections were 

received, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the agreement of the 

Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 66

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-02 

Location Granville Road (near No.68) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - 68 Granville Road - 260713 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

Issue 

No. 68 Granville Road is being redeveloped, and Kent Highways have given permission 

for a new vehicle access on to Granville Road. However, this new access requires the 

alteration of the existing permit parking bays in the road 

Requested by 

Local resident 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 26 Responses 1 (3.8%) 

In favour of proposals 1 (100%) 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should 

proceed to formal consultation. 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks - 68 Granville Road - 260614 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 26 Responses 1 (4%) 

Not in favour 1 (100%) 

The one response was from a nearby resident, commenting that the parking change has 

reduced on-street parking by 2 spaces, and that with a minor alteration this could be 

reduced to the loss of one parking space. 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The proposed changes to parking arrangements have been dictated by the layout of the 

vehicle crossover that Kent County Council had already given permission for, and that the 

resident of the property had already installed. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 67

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

Whilst it may be desireable to maintain as much on-street parking as possible, reducing 

the loss of parking would affect the useability of the vehicle crossover and impinge on 

the householders right of access to the public highway.   

Given that Kent County Council gave permission for the access, and thus established a 

right of access to the public highway, we cannot recommend other than to set aside the 

objection and to introduce the proposals as drawn. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 68

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-07 

Location Victoria Road (near Beech Road) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - Victoria Road - 260413 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has received a request to alter the parking bays in Victoria Road as the 

property on the corner of Victoria Road and Beech Road has re-opened it’s previously 

redundant rear vehicle access on to Victoria Road. 

The existing parking arrangements need to be altered to reflect this re-opened access. 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 35 Responses 4 (11.4%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (75%) 

Not in favour 1 (25%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

Even though there was one objection, there is little grounds for the Council to do other 

than promote the change, as the applicant already has a right of access to the public 

highway that we have to accommodate. 

 

Accordingly, the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Victoria Road - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 35 Responses 4 (11%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (50%) 

Not in favour 2 (50%) 

 

The two objections to the proposals were on the grounds that the access provides off-

street parking for one car, but at the loss of two on-street parking places, and that 

parking pressures in the road were already high.. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 69

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

Whilst I understand the objectors’ concerns about parking presure and the potential loss 

of parking, there is little that we can do to address this. The location of the access is too 

close to the junction on Beech Road to allow a parking bay to be maintained between the 

access and the existing junction protection double yellow lines.  

 

Given the existing right of access to the Highway that the resident now wants to exercise, 

there is little choice to the Council but to set aside the objections and and to introduce 

the proposals as drawn. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 70

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-13 

Location Crampton’s Road 

Ward Sevenoaks Northern 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - Cramptons Road - 190214 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to alter an existing disabled parking bay on Crampton’s 

Road. This would enlarge the parking bay in line with current national standards. 

 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 34 Responses 8 (23.5%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (37.5%) 

Not in favour 5 (62.5%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The comments received mixed, with more against the proposal than in favour. 

 

We have to look at the issues raised in more detail. There were comments from residents 

that the disabled person that uses the bay has alternative parking facilities, that the bay 

is large enough already and that the bay is not used at all times. There were also 

comments on whether the disabled person met the criteria for a disabled parking bay. 

 

However, we are not considering whether a bay should be provided – it was provided 

over 10 years ago -  but whether an existing bay should be brought in line with current 

legislation and standards. 

The fact is that the bay is too small to meet current standards, and we have a 

requirement to enlarge the bay to the appropriate size. 

 

We also have a requirement to consult on such changes to traffic regulation orders, 

whether the proposal be popular with residents or not. 

 

Accordingly, the proposal should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 71

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Cramptons Road - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 34 Responses 4 (12%) 

In favour of proposals 1 (25%) 

Not in favour 3 (75%) 

 

The first objection was from a nearby resident that “the current space is perfectly 

adequate as parking in the road is already very congested”. 

 

The second and third objections were on a similar basis, but made comments about the 

level of disability of the disabled resident. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

It is evident that parking in the area is at a premium and that residents are concerned 

about any loss of parking. It is also reasonably evident that some residents have 

personal issues with the disabled person – but this is not the subject of the parking 

proposal. 

 

The need for a disabled parking bay is also not being consulted upon – there is a blue 

badge holding resident in the area who wants to use an existing disabled parking bay.  

 

The issue relates to the size of the disabled parking bay, and as the resident has only 

asked for the bay to be marked at the size that current regulations currently prescribe, 

there is little choice to the Council but to set aside the objections and and to introduce 

the proposals as drawn. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 72

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-14 

Location Moor Road 

Ward Sevenoaks Northern 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks – Moor Road - 190214 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to alter parking arrangements in Moor Road, as the existing 

restrictions were introduced to service the now redundant Ambulance Station. 

We are also updating the restrictions to allow more on-street parking in some areas, but also to 

prevent parking on the corner, and in front of the former Ambulance Station site that is to be 

redeveloped. 

Requested by 

Developer 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 21 Responses 1 (4.8%) 

In favour of proposals 1 (100%) 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Moor Road - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 21 Responses 5 (20%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (60%) 

Not in favour 2 (40%) 

 

The first objection was from a nearby resident, on the basis that other residents in the 

road have ben allowed to have driveways, which has reduced the availabilty of on-street 

parking and that more residents have more than one vehicle. 

 

The second objection was also about parking pressures in the area. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The changes to the parking arrangements are being forced upon us by the 

redevelopment of the former Ambulance Station and the advice in the Highway Code 

about not parking on bends or where it would cause an obstruction. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 73

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

The opportunity has also been taken to remove some existing single yellow line 

restrictions that are no longer required to free-up more kerb space for parking. 

 

Given the permissions have already been given to the redevelopment of Ambulance 

Station, there is little choice to the Council but to set aside the objections and and to 

introduce the proposals as drawn. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 74

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Swanley Reference Amend 2-16 

Location Sycamore Drive 

Ward Swanley White Oak 

Informal consultation plan ref. Swanley – Sycamore Drive - 020813 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to make alterations to the existing parking arrangements 

at the southern end of Sycamore Drive to improve traffic movements. The proposal is to 

reduce the parking bays slightly to allow more room for queuing traffic at the junction. 

 

Requested by 

KCC Councillor Brookbank 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 77 Responses 6 (7.8%) 

In favour of proposals 5 (83.3%) 

Not in favour 1 (16.7%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The majority of the comments received were in favour of the proposal, however the one 

comment not in favour was on the grounds that Sycamore Drive should be widened and 

the junction with Bartholomew Way be altered, to accommodate the additional traffic 

that was generated by the extension of St Bartholomew’s RC school. 

 

However, alterations to the layout of the public highway are beyond the scope of the 

review, and are outside the powers of the District Council – this would be an issue for the 

Highway Authority to consider, but is still not a reason for not adjusting the parking as 

proposed. 

 

Accordingly, the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Swanley – Sycamore Drive - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 76 Responses 4 (5%) 

In favour of proposals 1 (25%) 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 75

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Not in favour 3 (75%) 

 

All three of the objections request that the parking arrangements in Syvamore Drive are 

amended by reducing the footway and creating a new off-carriageway parking area (lay-

by) as this would maintain parking and still remove the congestion. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

Whilst there may be merit in the provision of a parking lay-by on the eastern side of 

Sycamore Drive, this is outside the remit of the District Council and would be an issue for 

the Highway Authority to consider. 

 

The proposed change to the Highway to help reduce congestion and obstruction whist 

queuing to the junction of Bartholomew Way was originally requested by Councillor 

Brookbank in his role as Kent County Councillor for the area.   

 

With this in mind it is recommended that the proposals are considered by the Joint 

Transportation Board, with emphasis given to the views of the Highway Authority, and if 

the Highway Authority deem the congestion and obstruction issues sufficiently serious, 

to set aside the objections and to introduce the proposals as drawn. 

 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 76

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Edenbridge Reference Amend 2-20 

Location Hillcrest Road 

Ward Edenbridge North & East 

Informal consultation plan ref. Edenbridge – Hillcrest Road - 200214 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to extend the existing double yellow lines on the south 

side of Hillcrest Road to prevent parking on both sides of the road at the same time as 

this causes problems for traffic near to the junction with Main Road. 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 10 Responses 6 (60%) 

In favour of proposals 4 (66.67%) 

No view 2 (33.33%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The responses were broadly in favour of the proposals, with two responses asking that 

the lines be extended further on the south side, and one asking that the obstruction 

problem related to drop-off for the nursery be addressed (by extending yellow lines on the 

north side) 

 

Given the lack of objection at the informal consultation stage, the proposals should be 

extended and proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Edenbridge – Hillcrest Road A - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 11 Responses 6 (54%) 

In favour of proposals 5 (83%) 

Not in favour 1 (17%) 

 

Councillors Orridge and Mrs Davison commented in favour of the proposals. The Town 

Council commented in favour of the proposal for restrictions on the south side of the 

road, but not the north. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 77

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

 

The objection was that the changes would have very little effect and that we ought to 

consider the whole of Hillcrest Road and Highfields Road, and that the existing 

restrictions were frequently ignored, and that there were problems with pavement 

parking in Highfield Road. 

 

Three responses echoed the Town Council’s comments that the proposals should only be 

on the southern side of Hillcrest Road and the restrictions on the northern side should 

remain unchanged. 

 

There was one response also requested that Hillcrest Road should be made in to a one-

way street.  

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

At the informal consultation, we received a request to extend the restrictions on the 

northern side of the road, alongside the nursery and we included this in these proposals. 

However, it seems that this change does not have widespread support. 

 

The request to make Hillcrest Road a one-way street is outside the remit of the District 

Council, and would need to be considered by Kent County Council as the Highway 

Authority. 

 

With this in mind it is recommended that the objections are set aside and the proposals 

are introduced as drawn, save for the deletion of proposal to extend the double yellow 

lines on the north side of the road. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 78

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Farningham Reference Amend 2-26 

Location High Street 

Ward Farningham, Horton Kirby & South Darenth 

Informal consultation plan ref. Farningham – High Street - 200214 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The existing bus stops are not enforceable, and there have been reported problems with 

cars parking in those areas that prevent the buses from getting to the stops.  

 

Requested by 

Bus operators and by observations from SDC’s Civil Enforcement Officers 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 31 Responses 1 (3.2%) 

Not in favour 1 (100%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The comment against the proposal was from a resident who did not want additional 

markings in the conservation area (though the main “bus stop” markings are already in 

place). The objector also went on to comment that the proposed bus stop restrictions 

would affect the business prospects of the pub and restaurant. However, the main point 

of their objection was actually about planning issues associated with redevelopment of 

the Farningham Mill site to residential properties and the potential overspill of parking. 

 

The issues about the prospects of the pub and restaurant are addressed by the 

availability of other on-street parking nearby and the large pub car park. 

 

The issue of additional markings in the conservation area is misleading – there should 

be no additional markings along the road – just the addition of a thicker “clearway” lines 

at the back of the existing bus stop cage markings. However, a bus stop clearway sign 

would be required at each bus stop, though this can be accommodated on the existing 

street furniture.  

 

Accordingly it is recommended that the proposals proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Farningham – High Street - 260614 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 79

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 31 Responses 4 (13%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (75%) 

Not in favour 1 (25%) 

 

Councillor Chetram commented in support of the proposal. 

 

The one objection related to the use of the bus stops, and why the existing double yellow 

lines cannot already be enforced – and also suggestion that a red line be introduced. The 

objector also suggested that 1 hour’s parking should be allowed in the bus stops. 

 

The objector also raised concerns about further signage in the conservation area, and 

that parking rarely occurred on the bridge, except for “special occasions”. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The objector raises points that are contrary to the intention of the restrictions – the bus 

companies have reported problems with obstructive parking, and the aim is to resolve 

this. Allowing parking in the bus stops for up to one hour would be directly in opposition 

to the reported problem. 

 

The suggestion of a short length of red lines (instead of double yellow lines) is not 

possible as these are only available within the London metropolitan area. 

 

With regard to the impact on the conservation area, the only change would be the 

introduction of a statutory “bus stop clearway” sign at each location, that could be 

mounted on the existing street furniture by each bus stop, and a minor alteration to the 

yellow lines on the road. 

 

With this in mind it is recommended that the objections are set aside and the proposals 

are introduced as drawn 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 80

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-27 

Location The Drive (near No.53) 

Ward Town & St John's 

Informal consultation plan ref. Sevenoaks - The Drive - 130314 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

No. 53 The Drive is being redeveloped, and Kent Highways have given permission for a 

new vehicle access on to The Drive. However, this new access requires the alteration of 

the existing permit parking bays in the road 

 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 15 Responses 5 (33.3%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (60%) 

Not in favour 2 (40%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

As the Highway Authority has given permission for a new vehicle access to be 

constructed, the District Council has little choice other than to agree the alteration to the 

parking bays. 

 

Some residents have chosen to take the opportunity to resurrect comments about the 

planning permissions that have already been granted, with discussion about the 

provision of a new access on to The Drive. However this is outside the scope of this 

proposal – the planning applications have already been determined, and the Highway 

Authority has given permission for the access. 

 

There was also comment that the proposed access should not have double yellow lines 

in front of it – that a white line may be all that is necessary, and that a yellow line would 

detract from the visual appearance of the area. 

 

The inclusion of yellow lines in front of the access reflect calls that we have had in 

neighbouring roads to introduce similar lines to prevent obstructive parking, and would 

enable the District to take action against any vehicles parked there. The double yellow 

lines are not essential to the access, but would prevent obstructive parking in the future. 

 

Given the lengthy legal processes involved with the promotion of a traffic regulation 

order, it would seem better to introduce restrictions to deter obstruction and enable 

enforcement at the this stage when we are already engaged in the process, rather than 

potentially regret the omission of yellow lines in the near future, and not be able to 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 81

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

address the problem for some years, and at public expense rather than at the expense of 

the applicant. 

 

Accordingly, it is recommended that the proposals should proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – The Drive - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 15 Responses 6 (40%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (33%) 

Not in favour 3(50%) 

No view 1(17%) 

 

There was a strong response to this consultation, suggesting that parking in the area is 

of concern, both for those who want to park and for those who have problems with the 

parking and obstruction. 

 

The resident at No.134 London Road commented had commented previously about 

concerns about their driveway (on to The Drive) becoming obstructed, and to address this 

we included double yellow lines in front of this access in this consultation. However, in 

their response to this consultation, they have asked for this element to be deleted. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The proposed changes to parking arrangements have been dictated by the layout of the 

vehicle crossover that Kent County Council had already given permission for, and that the 

resident of the property had already installed. 

 

Whilst it may be desireable to maintain as much on-street parking as possible, reducing 

the loss of parking would affect the useability of the vehicle crossover and impinge on 

the householders right of access to the public highway.   

 

Given that Kent County Council gave permission for the access, and thus established a 

right of access to the public highway, we cannot recommend other than to set aside the 

objection and to introduce the proposals as drawn, save for the ommission of the double 

yellow lines across the rear access to No.134 London Road. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 82

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Sevenoaks Reference Amend 2-06 

Location Barrack Corner area 

Ward Town & St John’s and Sevenoaks Eastern 

 

Issue 

We received a request from Cllr Walshe as one of the ward members for the Sevenoaks 

Eastern ward to look at parking issues around Barrack Corner, with the aim of addressing 

issues raised by local businesses about parking difficulties for their customers. 

The Barrack Corner area has a number of retail premises and offices, as well as a 

recently opened child care facility. These commercial ventures have asked if there are 

options for providing more parking opportunities. 

Requested by 

Local businesses and Cllr Walshe 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Sevenoaks – Barrack Corner area - 021014 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 119 Responses 25 (21%) 

In favour of proposals 11 (44%) 

Not in favour 6 (24%) 

No view 8 (32%) 

 

Cllr Walshe and Cllr Purves (who both represent the Sevenoaks Eastern ward) 

commented on the proposals, broadly in support, but with some suggested alterations. 

 

Cllr Walshe thought the alteration of yellow lines in Cobden Road unnecessary, and that 

the removal of the parking controls on the west side of Dartford Road would encourage 

commuter parking. 

 

Cllr Purves echoed the comments from Cllr Walshe, but added that 1 hour limited waiting 

was probably not long enough, and that those areas proposed for 1 hour limited waiting 

should be 2 hour instead. 

 

There were other comments, suggestions and objections, but these tended to be outside 

the scope of this review, or not within the gift of the District Council, such as erecting 

signs indicating that Holly Bush Lane is unsuitable for larger vehicles, or that St John’s 

Road and Bradbourne Road should become one-way. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 83

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

 

There was some detailed analysis of the parking situation done by a local resident, who 

compiled a constructive report on the issues. This identified some additional areas on 

the periphery of the Barrack Corner area where parking could be “squeezed” in. 

 

The areas identified had already been considered, but the changes are not 

recommended. 

 Creating additional parking on the south side of Mount Harry Road 

This is problematic with the existing bus stop and property accesses. 

 Extending the parking area northwards towards Mount Harry Road on the west side of 

Dartford Road 

This is a problem as northbound vehicle speeds are high and the approach from 

Mount Harry Road is uphill – this affects the ability for vehicles to turn out of Mount 

Harry Road, and the longer than standard double yellow lines are to provide 

sufficient visibilty. 

 Creating one parking place in the lay-by on the eastern side of Dartford Road 

This could generate one space, but would affect bus movements. It had been 

suggested that the bus stop could relocate slightly towards the town centre and this 

would free-up most of the lay-by for parking, though this is outside the scope of the 

review. 

 Providing an extended additiona parking area on Bradbourne Road 

This is an issue if the road remains available for two-way traffic, something that is not 

within the gift of the District Council. 

 Child centre car park used for public parking on Saturdays 

This is not within our gift. 

 An extra bay on Hollybush Lane (prior to Cobden Road) 

This would depend on the formalisation (adoption) of the area on the corner of 

Avalon music – whilst this is stated to be available it needs to be on a permanent 

basis. 

 Extending double yellow lines in to Bethel Road 

This is beyond the remit of this review. The Council has previously proposed changes 

in this area but received objections about the loss of parking. 

 Extending parking bays on Holly Bush Lane up towards The Fiveways 

This could be considered given the one-way nature of Holly Bush Lane, if a review of 

the Fiveways junction was proposed. 

 Additional parking bay restrictions could be created on Vine Court Road 

The District had introduced this, but was asked to remove them by the local 

members. 

 

Additionally there were comments about parking in Cedar Terrace Road, and a request 

for restrictions to provide some form of proirity for residents, along with comments that 

introducing limited waiting on Holly Bush Lane (rather than uncontrolled parking) would 

disadvantage residents of Cedar Tearrace Road who often park there. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 84

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

It seems to be accepted that there are parking issues in the area and a will to try and 

resolve these. 

 

It is suggested that the comments from Councillors Walshe and Purves are taken on-

board and the proposals altered accordingly, i.e; 

 The restriction on the parking bays in Dartford Road shouldbe retained. 

 The 1 hour limited waiting parking bays should become 2 hour limited waiting 

 The proposed change in Cobden Road should be abandoned 

 

As these changes are either ther omission of a proposal, or the relaxation of a restriction, 

it is not thought necessary to re-advertise a new proposal. 

 

Accordingly it is recommended that the discussed alterations are made to the proposals 

and that they are implemented. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 85

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Swanley Reference Amend 2-17 

Location Oakleigh Close 

Ward Swanley White Oak 

Informal consultation plan ref. Swanley – Oakleigh Close - 190913 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to introduce new parking restrictions in to Oakleigh Close to 

prevent obstructive parking on the access road in to the area and at the junction. 

 

Requested by 

Local resident 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 124 Responses 11 (8.9%) 

In favour of proposals 10 (90.9%) 

Not in favour 1 (8.9%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The one comment against the proposal actually commented that parking either side of 

the access to Kennet Court caused problems – suggestive that the resident circled the 

wrong option on the form. 

 

Two residents asked that the restrictions be taken further, and accordingly we have 

amended the proposals to include single yellow lines to prevent all-day parking. 

 

Accordingly, the proposals have been adjusted to include yellow lines for one hour during 

the day, Monday to Friday to prevent all-day parking, and proceed to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Swanley – Oakleigh Close A - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 124 Responses 18 (14.5%) 

In favour of proposals 7 (39%) 

Not in favour 9 (50%) 

No view 2(11%) 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 86

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

There was a strong response to this consultation, suggesting that parking in the area is 

of concern, both for those who want to park and for those who have problems with the 

parking and obstruction. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The proposals required detailed analysis as to the location of the responders, and this 

produced a relatively clear pattern. Most of those who objected to the proposals were in 

the main part of Oakleigh Close, whilst most who supported the changes were in the 

access road in to the Close. This tends to confirm the issues that were initially reported 

about parking on the access road. 

 

There was also an objection from the nearby school, as Oakleigh Close was being used 

by their staff to park all day (a problem that residents had also highlighted). 

 

Whilst we have to consider the objections, we have to remember the purpose of the 

public highway – to allow vehicles to pass and re-pass, and that parking is only tolerated 

where it does not cause an obstruction, and whilst residents and those working at the 

local school may wish to park, if it causes a problem then we have to consider the 

appropriate response. 

 

Given that the majority of the objections were from the main part of Oakleigh Close, the 

proposed slight extension of the double yellow lines alongside No’s 9 and 49 could be 

omitted, but the rest of the restrictions should be implemented to maintain access. 

 

With this in mind it is recommended that the objections are set aside and the proposals 

are introduced as drawn, save for the extension of the double yellow lines alongside No’s 

9 & 49. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 87

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Crockenhill Reference Amend 2-18 

Location Broadway 

Ward Crockenhill & Well Hill 

Informal consultation plan ref. Crockenhill – Broadway - 200214 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request from the Parish Council to make adjustments to the parking bays 

in Broadway to support the local businesses. 

We were asked to look at reducing the length of stay (to allow more parking turnover for the local 

shops) and to extend the restrictions in to the evening period. 

 

Requested by 

Local businesses and the Parish Council 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 33 Responses 4 (12.1%) 

In favour of proposals 3 (75%) 

No view 1 (25%) 

The Parish Council and the local District Councillor for the area, Cllr Lindsay were in 

favour of the proposal. 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

The comments received were broadly in favour of the proposals at the informal 

consultation stage, however, there was a request from the Parish Council, one of the 

local shops and the District Councillor for the area that the restrictions start earlier in the 

day (7am). 

 

There was also a request from one of the local shops to have a parking permit for the 

area, as they wanted to park their commercial vehicle in the parking bays. However, this 

defeats the objective of maintaining the parking bays as short-stay parking for 

customers, and should not be taken forward. It may be that the business may need to 

make alternative arrangements for parking their van. 

 

Accordingly, the proposals should be adjusted to start earlier, and proceed to formal 

consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

Formal consultation plan ref: Crockenhill - Broadway A – 260614 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 88

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 33 Responses 2 (6%) 

Not in favour 2 (100%) 

 

The formal consultation responses were suprising given the previous favourable 

comments at the informal consultation stage, and the previously stated support from the 

Parish Council and Cllr Lindsay. 

 

One of the objections was from a nearby resident on the grounds that “if any of the shops 

in future should offer a service i.e. hairdresser, beauticians etc, an hour’s parking would 

not be sufficient” and that extending the restrictions to the evening, when the last shop 

closed at 7pm was unnecessary, and changing the restrictions was a waste of money. 

 

One objection was from a business in Broadway, querying the reason for the change, and 

that having canvassed the local businesses, none seemed to have asked for any change. 

The objector also went on to comment that starting the restrictions at 7am was 

unnecessary as the first premises opens at 7:30am, and the stores close at 7pm (save 

for the Indian takeaway that closes later). 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The objections (that the changes are not necessary and a waste of money) are relatively 

weak – one relates to a potential change in businesses in the future and one cannot 

understand the need for the change.   

 

However, given the lack of any other response during the formal consultation process, it 

is recommended that the objections are upheld and the proposals are abandoned. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 89

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Edenbridge Reference Amend 2-21 

Location Main Road & Brownings 

Ward Edenbridge North & East 

Informal consultation plan ref. Edenbridge – Main Road & Brownings - 

070813 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The Council has had a request to update the parking arrangements in Main Road and 

around the junction of Brownings, to prevent parking near to junctions and to remove any 

redundant restrictions. 

The restrictions on the west side of Main Road (near No.1) can be reduced to allow more 

parking as they originally reflected the need to protect the turning movements of vehicle 

in to and out of the former Dairy site. The proposals also deter parking on the narrow 

entrance in to Brownings. 

 

Requested by 

Local resident and Town Council 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 36 Responses 39 (108.3%) 

In favour of proposals 4 (10.3%) 

Not in favour 34 (87.2%) 

No view 1 (2.6%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

There was a very strong response to the consultation, strongly against the proposal for 

increasing parking on the west side of Main Road, south of the Hilders Lane junction, and 

also against the restrictions in to Brownings. 

There were also comments against the proposed double yellow lines on the east side of 

the road as this would affect the local shop’s passing trade. 

 

There were also objections to the establishment of a disabled parking bay on the west 

side of Main Road, but this is in response to a valid application from a disabled resident. 

 

There was recognition for the need of some restrictions around the junction of Main 

Road and Brownings, but that these should not extend too far in to Brownings. 

 

We have adjusted the proposals so that only standard junction protection is proposed for 

Brownings, along with a disabled parking bay outside The Row and a short length of 

double yellow lines on the hatched area on the west side of Main Road, south of The 

Row. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 90

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

 

Accordingly, the proposals have been amended and reduced, and should proceed to 

formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Edenbridge – Main Road & Brownings A - 260614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 62 Responses 15 (23%) 

In favour of proposals 8 (53%) 

Not in favour 7 (47%) 

 

Councillors Orridge commented in support of the proposals, and Cllr Davison commented 

echoing the comments of the Town Council, suggesting that there was no need for the 

proposed double yellow lines on the west side of MaiN Road, near to Firs Lodge. 

 

Edenbridge Town Council commented with no objection to the proposals in Brownings, 

and that the proposed double yellow lines on the west side of the Main Road should be 

long enough to cover the access to The Stables and Firs Lodge, but no further. 

 

The objections covered a number of points; 

 That the proposed yellow lines in Brownings go too far, and should only be 1.5m 

long, 

 That the proposed yellow lines in Brownings do not go far enough, as there are 

problems with obstructive parking 

 That the proposed yellow lines should only be single yellow lines, so that residents 

can park in the evenings 

 That the proposed disabled parking bay is unnecessary, as residents didn’t feel 

that there was a suitably disabled person in the area 

 That the existing yellow lines on Main Road should be reduced to allow more 

parking. 

 That the parking in front of The Row should be controlled by permits, one issued 

to each property. 

 That the parking restriction at the entrance to Firs Lodge is unnecessary, and the 

loss of facility to park adjacent to the access was a problem that would affect 

residents. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 91

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

The proposal for double yellow lines on the western side of Main Road echoes the 

existing white hatch markings (installed by KCC to deflect traffic past parked vehicles in 

front of The Row), and maintains visibility to oncoming vehicles for vehicles emerging 

from the properties. Some residents may enjoy parking in this area, but it creates 

visibility issues for others. The arguement that this will significantly effect the property 

values should not be considered valid, as the parking was never part of the property, and 

there is alternative parking less than 20m away, but given the comments from the 

residents and the local Member, the restriction could be omitted.  

 

However, the white hatching would remain at this location as it is not part of the District’s 

remit, and residents should be aware of the requirements of the Highway Code not to 

enter or park in hatched areas, and where visibilty could be compromised. 

 

The comments relating to the length of yellow lines in Brownings are in direct opposition 

to each other, showing the difference in opinion between those who want to park and 

those who want (and have a right of) access, as well as the minimum design standards 

for “junction protection” on the public highway that would be supported by the Police. 

 

The comments suggesting that the yellow lines should be single yellow lines, (allowing 

parking overnight) is also in conflict with the calls for restrictions to maintain access and 

visibilty. 

 

The objections on the grounds that there is not a disabled person in the area should not 

be taken forward. Whilst we cannot distribute the personal details of a disabled resident, 

the Council has received an application for a disabled parking bay from a resident who 

meets the criteria for such a bay on the public highway  as set out by Kent County 

Council, and comments about parking pressures in the area actually reinforce the 

importance of providing a facility for someone with mobility issues to enable them to park 

close to their property. 

 

The call for the existing yellow lines on Main Road to be reduced was explored at the 

informal consultation stage, where approximately 3 more cars could have been 

accomodated, but this element attracted considerable opposition. 

 

The call for permits to be issued to residents of The Row should not be taken forward – 

the purpose of a permit parking scheme is to provide priority for residents against a 

daytime influx of non-resident parking, and not to “ration” spaces amongst residents. A 

permit scheme is not appropriate to address issues where ultimate parking capacity has 

been reached by residents, and would only serve to introduce an annual charge to 

residents with no increas in parking capacity or opportunity. 

 

Accordingly, it is recommended that the objections are noted, particularly those from the 

local members, and the proposals are reduced by the deletion of the proposed double 

yellow lines on the west side of Main Road, and the amended proposals are introduced. 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 92

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Edenbridge Reference Amend 2-23 

Location Mill Hill, Ashbys Close, Victoria Road & 

Waterlakes 

Ward Edenbridge South & West 

Informal consultation plan ref. Edenbridge - Mill Hill 2 - 290513 

Informal 

consultation start 

22nd March 2014 

 

Informal 

consultation end 

18th April 2014 

 

 

Issue 

The District Council has had a request to update the parking restrictions in Mill and 

around the junctions of Ashbys Close, Victoria Road and Waterlakes, as the existing 

single yellow lines are outdated and do not extend far enough at the junctions.  

 

Requested by 

Sevenoaks District Councillor Orridge and local residents 

 

Informal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 62 Responses 31 (50%) 

In favour of proposals 14 (45.2%) 

Not in favour 17 (54.8%) 

 

Officer Recommendation after informal consultation 

There was a strong response to the consultation – particularly from residents of 

Katherine Villas and Katherine Road who have no alternative parking, objecting to the 

proposals. 

However there were comments in favour of the proposals from the roads where parking 

had displaced to – Waterlakes, Victoria Road and Ashbys Close. 

 

The proposals have been adjusted to retain some of the existing single yellow lines on 

Mill Hill, but also retaining (and in some cases extending) junction protection double 

yellow lines around the entrances to the cul-de-sacs. 

 

The changes reflect the advice in the Highway Code about not causing an obstruction or 

parking near to junctions, and accordingly the amended proposals should proceed to 

formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Edenbridge – Mill Hill 2 A - 260614 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 93

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 62 Responses 21 (34%) 

In favour of proposals 11 (52%) 

Not in favour 9 (43%) 

No view 1 (5%) 

 

The Town Council commented that the proposals should only be the statutory minimum 

on the corners. Councillor Orridge, who had previously supported the proposals, wanted 

the restrictions scaled-back, as the recent alterations to the public highway with the 

introduction of a new footway in the High Street hd already reduced the available parking 

in the area. 

 

From the responses there it is evident that there are parking problems in the area, both 

of obstructive parking, and of residential properties that have no off-street parking. 

 

Generally there was support for the changes from the residents who had problem parking 

outside their homes, and opposition from those with no off-street facility (or who lived in 

properties with no road access at all). 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

It is recommended that a balanced approach is taken to the parking issues in the area – 

where possible parking should be maintained, but where the Highway Code suggests 

parking should not occur, this should be prevented. 

 

It is proposed that the restrictions are adjusted as follows; 

Ashbys Close – restrictions introduced as drawn 

Waterlakes – double yellow lines on the north side for 10m from the junction of Mill Hill, 

and on the south side as drawn 

Victoria Road – double yellow lines on both sides for 10m from the junction of Mill Hill, 

and 6m on the south side at the bend to prevent obstructive parking. 

Mill Hill – double yellow lines for 10m either side of each junction. 

 

This would provide junction protection restrictions and protect the areas where 

obstructive parking occurs, but would maintain as much parking as possible.  As each 

adjustment is a reduction to the proposal, it is not felt necessary to re-advertise as a new 

proposal. 

 

It is recommended that the proposals are reduced as discussed,the objections are noted 

and set aside, and the changes implemented as a practical solution to the parking issues 

in the area, though they may not meet all the requirements of each party. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 94

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Farningham Reference Amend 2-25 

Location Teardrop Centre 

Ward Farningham, Horton Kirby & South Darenth 

 

Issue 

Kent Count Council operates a Highways Depot at the end of the access to the Teardrop 

Centre.  

 

This depot is required for emergency responses to incidents on the Highway and for 

winter maintenance. Unfortunately there are problems with parking on the access road 

that can obstruct the vehicles responding to emergencies. 

 

Due to the essential need to prevent obstructive parking at any time of the day, we are 

taking the unusual step of proposing restrictions to prevent parking and loading at all 

times in the areas where obstructive parking occurs, as this will enable effective 

enforcement. 

 

Requested by 

Kent County Council, who asked that due to the nature of the problems the issue be 

taken directly to formal consultation. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Farningham – Teardrop Centre - 070714 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 5 Responses 0 

 

No responses were received from the businesses in the area, but Cllr Chetram 

responded in support of the proposals. 

 

Farningham Parish Council submitted comments on the proposals, but these were 

received outside of the consultation period. Their comments were that the proposals 

needed re-thinking following the recent closure of one of the commercial premises in the 

area, and that the proposals would not serve any purpose. 

 

With regard to the Parish’s comments – the introduction of restrictions to prevent 

obstruction is at the request of the Highway Authority, and reflects problems that they 

have already experienced.  The closure of one of the businesses in the area may have a 

beneficial effect on traffic movements, but the obstruction issues could still arise, 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 95

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

affecting emergency response times and the parking impact of any new business that 

may take on the vacant property also needs to be considered. 

 

Due to the type of restriction proposed, any substantive objection received during the 

statutory consultation period would be the trigger for a Public Enquiry, but as the Parish’s 

response was outside of the published consultation, we are not obliged to carry out a 

formal public enquiry. 

  

As there were no responses within the declared consultation period, it is recommended 

that the out-of-time response from the Parish be considered, but set aside, and the 

proposals should (subject to the agreement of the Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 96

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Westerham Reference Amend 2-28 

Location Bartlett Road & Delagarde Road 

Ward Westerham & Crockham Hill 

 

Issue 

Bartlett Road and Delagarde Road are narrow cul-de-sacs off Croydon Road in 

Westerham. Residents of the roads have complained about non-resident parking during 

the day, as drivers try to avoid the parking charges that apply in Croydion Road.  

 

Residents have asked that Bartlett Road and Delagarde Road be added to the existing 

W2 permit parking area, so that non-resident parking in the roads is controlled.. 

 

Requested by 

Residents of both Bartlett Road and Delagarde Road. 

 

Informal consultation 

In 2013 we carried out a survey of residents in Bartlett Road, Delagarde Road and The 

Paddock to establish whether there was support for those roads to join the neighbouring 

permit parking scheme. The residents of Bartlett Road and Delagarde Road indicated 

that they would want to join the scheme, but the residents of The Paddock declined. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Westerham – Bartlett Road & Delagarde Road – 270614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 35 Responses 6 (17%) 

In favour of proposals 4 (66.7%) 

 1 (16.7%) 

No view 1 (16.7%) 

 

Westerham Town Council have responded in favour of the proposal. 

 

The objection was that the restrictions were unneccesary in Bartlett Road, that the long-

stay parkers generally arrive after the everyone has left for work, and go by the time 

people return, and that residents did not want the additional expense. 

 

The “no view” response suggested that they were in favour of the proposal, but that the 

proposed double yellow lines in Delagarde Road (to prevent obstruction on the narrow 

entrance road) should be reduced. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 97

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The objection actually confirms that long-stay parking occurs in Bartlett Road, and this is 

what the other residents have raised as an issue. Whilst it is understood that an 

additional expense on residents is not popular, the additonal parking protection should 

be a significant advantage. 

 

The proposal for double yellow lines in the narrow access in to Delagarde Road is 

intended to prevent obstructive parking and the need for vehicles to “bump-up” on the 

footway to pass parked vehicles that would cause an obstruction, and to ease turning 

movements for vehicles turning in and out of the garage area. 

 

Accordingly it is recommended that the objection is set aside and the comments are 

noted, and the restrictions are implemented as proposed. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 98

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Westerham Reference Amend 2-29 

Location The Green 

Ward Westerham & Crockham Hill 

 

Issue 1 

Kent Police have asked fo the existing parking bay for police vehicles at the western end 

of The Green be relocated and enlarged, as it is currently only suitable for police cars, 

and not for larger police vehicles.  

 

Issue 2 

The Town Council have asked that the parking bays on the south side of the northern 

arm of The Green be altered to create a gap at the end of the footpath across The Green, 

as this would assist pedestrians and wheelchair users in crossing. 

 

Requested by 

Kent Police and Westerham Town Council. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Westerham – The Green - 270614 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 27 Responses 6 (22%) 

In favour of proposals 2 (33%) 

Not in favour 2 (33%) 

No view 2 (33%) 

 

The Town Council reponded in favour of the change at the end of the footpath across The 

Green, but questioned whether the changes to the Police bay were required as the Police 

no longer used a mobile police station in the area. 

 

The Police responded that they wished to continue with the proposal as when they had 

an operationa need to park a larger vehicle in the area (whether the mobile police station 

or not) it was problematic to fit in the existing bay and a larger facility was required. 

 

The responses against, or of no view related to concerns over the loss of parking on The 

Green by the introduction of a gap in the run of bays, and the potential obstruction to 

visibilty that a vehicle in the proposed Police bay would cause. There was also a request 

to make the area that is proposed for a police bay in to a loading bay for the local 

businesses (contrary to their prior argument about visibilty). 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 99

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The proposal to adjust the parking bays alongside The Green is a minor change, reducing 

the parking bays by 2m. With the parking being distributed along a length, there should 

not be a significant loss to parking, whislt providing a better facility for pedestrians and 

people with mobility issues. 

 

The Police’s case for a relocated parking bay is valid to support their operational 

reuirements, and the concerns about any obstruction to visibilty needs to be set against 

the likely occupancy rate of the bay, which is likely to be relatively low. 

 

Accordingly, it is proposed that the comments and objections are set aside and the 

proposals are introduced as drawn. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 100

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Westerham Reference Amend 2-30 

Location Black Eagle Close 

Ward Westerham & Crockham Hill 

 

Issue 

The District Council has had a request to address problems associated with obstructive 

parking in Black Eagle Close, where vehicles park on both sides and cause problems 

accessing the car parks to the commercial premises in the area. 

Requested by 

Local businesses and residents 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Westerham – Black Eagle Close – 200814 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 47 Responses 17 (36%) 

In favour of proposals 12 (70%) 

Not in favour 3 (18%) 

No view 2 (12%) 

 

The Town Council commented that resident felt that more double yellow lines were not 

necessary an would make the situation worse – and that vehicles might displace in to 

the residential part of the cul-de-sac.  The Town Council felt that the existing yellow lines 

should be extended slightly on both sides to improve sightlines. 

 

Some objectors commented that they did not feel that there was an obstruction  

Problem and that the proposals were unnecessary. 

 

Residents also echoed the comment from the Town Council that parking might displace 

to the residential properties. 

 

Some of the comments in favour of the proposal asked for additional restrictions in the 

cul-de-sac part of the close. 

 

Some residents commented that should the restrictions be introduced, there would also 

need to be a free residents permit scheme for the cul-de-sac. 

 

One resident commented that the proposals should be for single yellow lines rather than 

double yellow lines as this would deal with the day-time parking issue, but also 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 101

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

commented that there have been many times when refuse collection vehicles have not 

been able to collect, and a couple of occasions where ambulances were unable to attend 

properties. 

 

One resident commented that the proposals were most necessary, and that all the 

residential properties in the road had deisngated parking areas/spaces/garages. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The proposals have been designed to be the minimum necessary to maintain access, so 

that as much on-street parking as possible can be maintained. I understand resident’s 

concerns about parking displacing in to the cul-de-sac, but this is a much less significant 

problem to the obstruction of the road, especially as residents all have their own parking 

facilities. 

 

It may be that in time a resident’s parking scheme might be considered for the cul-de-sac 

parts of Black Eagle Close, but residents are likely to balk at the annual charge, as would 

not be eligible for the lower priced permits due to their off-street parking. 

 

It is recommended that the objections be set aside and the proposals be introduced as 

drawn. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 102

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Westerham Reference Amend 2-31 

Location The Paddock 

Ward Westerham and Crockham Hill 

 

Issue 

We have had a request from a blue-badge holding resident for a disabled parking bay on 

the public highway in The Paddock. 

 

As the resident meets the criteria for a disabled parking bay on the Highway, and the 

area is regularly used by school parents picking-up and dropping off for the nearby 

school, we are proposing the installation of an enforceable disabled parking bay. 

 

Requested by 

Local blue badge holding resident. 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Westerham – The Paddock - 021014 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 18 Responses 1 (6%) 

In favour of proposals 1(100%) 

 

As there were no objections, it is recommended that the proposals should (subject to the 

agreement of the Portfolio Holder) be implemented. 

 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 103

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

Town Westerham Reference Amend 2-32 

Location Farley Nursery 

Ward Westerham & Crockham Hill 

 

Issue 

We received a request from residents of Farley Nursery to address the problem of 

obstructive parking in the entrance road to Farley Nursery and around the junction of 

Westbury Terrace. 

Requested by 

Local residents 

 

Formal Consultation 

Formal Consultation was carried out on the proposals, from 13th November to 7th 

December 2014, with letters to frontagers, notices on-street and in the local newspaper 

and documents on deposit at the Council Offices. The proposals were also shown on the 

Council’s website. 

 

Formal consultation plan ref: Westerham – Farley Nursery – 180914 

 

Formal Consultation Summary 

Properties consulted 31 Responses 23 (74%) 

In favour of proposals 6 (26%) 

Not in favour 14 (61%) 

No view 3 (13%) 

 

The Town Council commented that it had received representations from a number of 

residents, none of whom supported the proposals and accordingly the Town Council did 

not support the proposal. 

 

There were a number of response from the residents of Farley Nursery and Westbury 

Terrace, and a number from residents outside of the proposals in New Street. 

 

There was support for the proposals, mainly from properties in the cul-de-sac that have 

to run the gauntlet of the parking, and opposition mainly from the residents of Westbury 

Terrace and New Street who did not want to lose the parking facility. 

 

Analysis and Officer Recommendation 

The proposals have been designed to be the minimum necessary to maintain access, so 

that as much on-street parking as possible can be maintained. I understand resident’s 

concerns about the loss of parking, but the purpose of the public highway is to allow 

travel, not for the storage of vehicles. 

 

Though it is against the wishes of the Town Council and the majority of those who 

responded, access to properties along the public highway has to be taken as its primary 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 104

Agenda Item 5



TRO 2013 Amendment 2 – Location Summaries 

 

purpose, and it is recommended that the objections be set aside and the proposals be 

introduced as drawn. 

 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 10 March 2015 Appendix B

Page 105

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ON-STREET PARKING RESTRICTION CHANGES – TRO 2013 AMENDMENT 12 (DUNTON 

GREEN AND WESTERHAM) 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 10 March 2015 

 

Report of  Chief Officer, Environmental & Operational Services 

Status: For Decision 

Key Decision: No  

Executive Summary: To consider objections to changes to parking restrictions for minor 

alterations to parking restrictions in Station Road and Kingswood Avenue, Dunton Green 

and The Green, Westerham 

This report supports the Key Aims of the Community Plan; 

• Safer Communities (by improving road safety issues) 

• Caring Communities (by providing or adjusting disabled parking facilities) 

• Dynamic Economy (by providing more appropriate restrictions near local retail 

establishments) 

• Sustainable Economy (by improving travel arrangements and reducing congestion)  

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Hogarth 

Contact Officer(s) Andy Bracey x7323 

Recommendation to Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board:   

(a) The objections to the proposed extension to parking restrictions in Station Road, 

Dunton Green are set aside and the changes are implemented. 

(b) The objections to the proposed double yellow lines in Kingswood Road, Dunton 

Green are noted, the proposed restrictions are reduced, and that the existing 

double yellow lines are reduced. 

(c) Either; 

i. The objections to the proposals to change the single yellow line to double 

yellow line in the corner of The Green, Westerham are set aside and the 

proposals implemented; or 

ii. The objections are upheld, and in line with Cllr Maskell’s comments the 
issue of changing the traffic arrangements around The Green are referred 

Page 107

Agenda Item 6



 

to Kent County Council as the Highway Authority. 

Reason for recommendation: The proposals are aimed at providing better management 

of the Public Highway, in line with the Highway Code and current legislation.  

Introduction and Background 

1 The District Council recently introduced new parking restrictions in Dunton Green 

to help prevent obstruction and manage commuter parking. 

2 Following the introduction of those restrictions, we had requests from residents for 

minor alterations to the parking restrictions in Kingswood Road, to facilitate better 

access to garages and in Station Road, close to the traffic calming to prevent 

obstruction. 

3 The District Council has also carried out consultations on new parking restrictions 

in Westerham (which are covered within another report to this Board). As part of 

that consultation, a resident of The Green in Westerham requested a change to 

the parking restrictions in the corner of The Green to prevent parking obstruction, 

which had not been part of the original proposal for that area. 

4 Due to the minor nature of the changes, which resulted from the previous parking 

consultations that were carried out, it was decided to take the proposals for these 

minor amendments directly to the formal consultation stage. 

The proposed changes 

5 Details of the proposals are shown in Appendix A. 

Formal consultation and responses 

6 We carried out formal consultation on the proposed changes, from the 15th 

January to 8th February 2015. This consisted of letters to the immediate frontagers 

of the area, notices on-street and advertisements in the local press, in accordance 

with the statutory requirements. 

7 The full details of the responses are shown in Appendices B, C & D. 

8 Station Road, Dunton Green 

We consulted directly with 8 properties close to the proposals for Station Road, 

Dunton Green. We received 6 responses, 2 in favour, 3 against and one that was 

in favour, but wanted the restrictions extended further. 

9 The comments against the proposals were more relevant to the location of the 

existing traffic calming, and the queuing traffic associated with that, rather than 

the proposed extension to the parking restrictions. 

10 The location and purpose of the traffic calming is outside of the remit of the 

District Council, and would be an issue for the Highway Authority, but I understand 

that the traffic calming was introduced by the Highway Authority and the 

developers of the former West Kent Cold Store site as part of the Highway 

requirements of the planning conditions. 

Page 108

Agenda Item 6



 

11 The Parish Council responded with no comments or observations. 

12 Bearing in mind that the proposal is to improve traffic movements through the 

traffic calming, it is recommended that the objections to the proposals for Station 

Road be set aside and the proposals be introduced. 

13 Kingswood Avenue, Dunton Green 

We consulted directly with 8 properties close to the proposals for Kingswood Road, 

and received 5 responses, 2 in favour of the proposals and 3 against the 

proposals. 

14 The full details of the responses are shown in Appendix C (available in unredacted 

form in the Members Room, and in a redacted electronic form online after the 

meeting with the minutes) 

15 The comments in favour of the proposals echo the request for restrictions, that 

parking opposite the garages could cause problems for drivers manouvering in 

and out of garages. 

16 The comments against the proposals were mainly concerned with the loss of on-

street parking in an area where parking was already difficult. One resident 

comments indicated that they thought that there should be sufficient room for the 

users of the garages to gain access, if they were more competent in manoeuvring 

their vehicles, and that the parking on the opposite side of the road was not 

necessarily a problem, and looking at the size an location of the garages, this may 

well be a relevant point. 

17 However, we have to consider the rights of access that residents currently enjoy, 

and if drivers have problems gaining access this needs to be considered, 

regardless of the level of vehicle control skill of the drivers. 

18 It is suggested that a driver that is taking the appropriate care and with “normal” 

vehicle turning dynamics should be able to gain access to or from the garages, 

whether travelling forwards or reversing. 

19 Accordingly it is recommended that though we have received a request for a 

change to the restrictions to facilitate access, access is already possible, and the 

objections should be upheld.  

20 To assist access to the southern-most garage it is recommended that the 

proposed yellow lines be shortened to a 2m extension of the existing yellow lines 

opposite the southern-most garage as this would retain parking opposite, and 

ease turning in and out of the end garage. 

21 Another objector asked that the existing restrictions on the east side of Kingswood 

Road (alongside No.32) be reduced slightly, as this would facilitate the parking of 

an additional vehicle. 

22 This could be accommodated by reducing the yellow lines from the junction by 1m, 

and reducing the northern end of the yellow lines in front of the garages by 0.5m. 

Page 109

Agenda Item 6



 

23 This minor change may increase on-street parking capacity, and as a relaxation in 

the existing restriction, could be accommodated at this stage. 

24 The Parish Council responded with no comments or observations. 

25 It is recommended that the Board agree the reduction of the proposed double 

yellow lines on the west side of the road, and also agree the reduction of the 

existing double yellow lines on the eastern side of the road. 

26 The Green, Westerham 

We consulted directly with 10 properties close to the proposals for The Green. We 

received 13 responses, of which 9 were from members of the public that were not 

directly consulted, 3 in favour of the proposals, and 9 against the proposals and 1 

that proposed an alternative scheme to radically alter the traffic arrangements 

around The Green by the introduction of a one-way system. 

27 The proposal for an alternative traffic arrangement was supported by a petition of 

the local businesses.  However, changes to the traffic flow and the other 

suggestions are outside the remit of the District Council and would be for the 

Highway Authority to consider. 

28 The full details of the responses (including the petition) are shown in Appendix D 

(available in unredacted form in the Members Room, and in a redacted electronic 

form online after the meeting with the minutes) 

29 The 3 comments in favour of the proposals were from immediate residents of the 

area. 

30 Of the 9 comments against the proposals, 8 were from representatives of the local 

church, and it is noted that a number of the responses share exactly the same 

points. 

31 The objections were on the grounds that; 

 

• a high proportion of the congregation are disabled and double yellow lines 

would prevent them from being dropped-off;  

• that the double yellow lines would prevent hearses and cars for weddings 

from using the area;  

• and that the current restrictions do not apply on Sundays, and the proposals 

would reduce parking on their busiest day. 

32 However, these assumptions on the restrictions are incorrect. There is no 

difference between the current single yellow lines and the proposed double yellow 

lines, other than the time period that they operate for. 

33 It is perfectly allowable for passengers to board or alight a vehicle on double yellow 

lines, and disabled drivers or passengers who have a blue badge would still be 

able to park (provided they do not cause an obstruction) for up to 3 hours in 

accordance with the blue badge scheme. 

Page 110

Agenda Item 6



 

34 The District’s traffic regulation orders already include an exemption for wedding 

cars and hearses that are being used “officially”, and the change from single 

yellow lines to double yellow lines would make no difference. 

35 The change from single yellow line (No waiting, Monday-Saturday, 8.30am-

6.30pm) to double yellow line (No waiting at any time) would reduce parking 

immediately outside the church on Sundays and overnight, however these are the 

times when the parking bay restrictions in the area are lifted, so there should be 

available parking in the area nearby. 

36 As the proposals are minor – they only change a short stretch of single yellow line 

to double yellow line, and this is to prevent obstruction, it is recommended that 

the objections be set aside, and the proposals are introduced. 

37 However, one of the local District Councillors for the area, Cllr Maskell has asked 

that in light of the responses from residents that the proposals for The Green are 

withdrawn, particularly in light of the request from residents for a change to the 

traffic flow arrangements around The Green for further investigation (though a 

change of this nature would be outside of the remit of the District Council). Cllr 

Maskell’s comments are in Appendix E. 

38 In view of this, Member’s views are sought on how to proceed with the proposal for 

The Green, either in line with the recommendation or in line with Cllr Maskell’s 

comments. 

Key Implications 

Financial 

The costs of implementing the changes vary with the decision of the Board as to which 

proposals to implement, but if all proposals are taken forward to implementation, the 

expected implication is for; 

• 1 day of road marking work, at £750 per day 

• and approximately £200 in changes to on-street signs and posts (some of which 

would be the removal of redundant street furniture). 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.  

There are no additional risks identified that are outside those already covered within the 

standard Risk Assessment for carrying out parking enforcement on the Public Highway. 

Equality Assessment   

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to the 

substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users. 

 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 6



 

Appendices Appendix A – Plans of proposals 

Appendix B – Station Road responses 

Appendix C – Kingswood Road responses 

Appendix D – The Green responses 

Appendix E – Cllr Maskell’s comments 

Background Papers: The Traffic Signs Regulations & General Directions 

2002 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/3113 

The Highways Act 1980 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66 

The Road Traffic Act 1988 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1988/52 

The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (as 

amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1984/27 

The Traffic Management Act 2004 (as amended) 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/18 

The Highway Code 
https://www.gov.uk/browse/driving/highway-code.  

Richard Wilson 

Chief Officer, Environmental & Operational Services 

 

Page 112

Agenda Item 6



STATION ROAD

KIN
G

SW
O

O
D

 R
O

AD

32
1

2

30

16

7

KIN
G

SW
O

O
D

 R
O

AD
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown
Copyright 2000.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Date Revision Ref Drawn

Title

Sevenoaks
D I S T R I C T    C O U N C I L

Scale 1:500
File ref : T/Dunton Green

Date : 12/12/14
Drawn by : ACB

File name : Dunton Green - Kingswood Road - 121214.pdf

Key

Proposed Waiting Restrictions - Formal Consultation
Kingswood Road (minor amendment)

Dunton Green
If you find the plans or colours confusing, please try viewing the plans on the District Council website www.sevenoaks.gov.uk

Proposed double yellow lines

Existing double yellow lines

New double yellow lines (requested
by garage holders) to prevent
obstruction opposite garages

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 6



STATION ROAD

Dunton Green

Free Church

1

16

6

14
4

2STATION ROAD

CR
ESCEN

T CO
TTAG

ES
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown
Copyright 2000.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Date Revision Ref Drawn

Title

Sevenoaks
D I S T R I C T    C O U N C I L

Scale 1:500
File ref : T/Dunton Green

Date : 12/12/14
Drawn by : ACB

File name : Dunton Green - Station Road - 121214.pdf

Key

Proposed Waiting Restrictions - Formal Consultation
Station Road (minor amendment)

Dunton Green
If you find the plans or colours confusing, please try viewing the plans on the District Council website www.sevenoaks.gov.uk

Proposed double yellow lines

Private road (not public highway)

Existing double yellow lines

Double yellow lines extended by
25m to prevent obstruction at
priority workings and in front of
accesses

Existing disabled parking bay

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 6



8

15

19
20

21
22

VICARAGE HILL

THE GREEN

Borde Hill

Church
Cottage

Vi
ca

ra
ge

Co
tt

ag
e

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, Crown
Copyright 2000.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Date Revision Ref Drawn

Title

Sevenoaks
D I S T R I C T    C O U N C I L

Scale 1:500@A4
File ref : T/Westerham/4

Date : 12/14
Drawn by : ACB

File name : Westerham - The Green (eastern end) - 121214.pdf

Key

Proposed Waiting Restrictions - Formal Consultation
The Green (eastern end)

Westerham

Existing No waiting, Mon-Sat,

Existing double yellow lines

8.30am-6.30pm

Existing pay & display and 
permit parking

If you find the plans or colours confusing, please try viewing the plans on the District Council website www.sevenoaks.gov.uk

Proposed double yellow lines

Existing single yellow line to
become double yellow line to
prevent obstructive parking

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117

Agenda Item 6

csinclair
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



Page 118

Agenda Item 6



Page 119

Agenda Item 6



Page 120

Agenda Item 6



Page 121

Agenda Item 6



Page 122

Agenda Item 6



Page 123

Agenda Item 6



Page 124

Agenda Item 6



Page 125

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 127

Agenda Item 6

csinclair
Typewritten Text
Appendix C



Page 128

Agenda Item 6



Page 129

Agenda Item 6



Page 130

Agenda Item 6



Page 131

Agenda Item 6



Page 132

Agenda Item 6



Page 133

Agenda Item 6



Page 134

Agenda Item 6



Page 135

Agenda Item 6

csinclair
Typewritten Text
Appendix D



Page 136

Agenda Item 6



Page 137

Agenda Item 6



Page 138

Agenda Item 6



Page 139

Agenda Item 6



Page 140

Agenda Item 6



Page 141

Agenda Item 6



Page 142

Agenda Item 6



Page 143

Agenda Item 6



Page 144

Agenda Item 6



Page 145

Agenda Item 6



Page 146

Agenda Item 6



Page 147

Agenda Item 6



Page 148

Agenda Item 6



Page 149

Agenda Item 6



Page 150

Agenda Item 6



Page 151

Agenda Item 6



Page 152

Agenda Item 6



Page 153

Agenda Item 6



Page 154

Agenda Item 6



Page 155

Agenda Item 6



Page 156

Agenda Item 6



Page 157

Agenda Item 6



Page 158

Agenda Item 6



Page 159

Agenda Item 6



Page 160

Agenda Item 6



Page 161

Agenda Item 6



Page 162

Agenda Item 6



1

Andy Bracey

From: Andy Bracey
Sent: 06 February 2015 16:04
To: 'Maskell, Kevin'
Cc: Cllr Bracken, Elaine; Richard Wilson; Gary Connor; 'Steven.Noad@kent.gov.uk'
Subject: RE: Changes to parking restrictions - TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Consultation 

response summaries and recommendations to JTB

Cllr Maskell 
 
I do understand your points, that some responders may have misunderstood the process and perhaps it could be 
considered that this is a failure of the correspondence sent out (though we consulted on around 30 locations and 
the others seemed to understand the issues and principles), but it is more likely to be a measure of the support for 
those that want to carry on parking,  without regard to the access problems for the other residents of the area, or a 
lack of understanding of the relevant parts of the Highway Code. 
 
The recommendations for Black Eagle Close, Farley Nursery and The Green would still be the same based on the 
Highway issues and the legal rights of access.  In the circumstances, it may be that you would wish to comment 
directly to the Board, but the report to the Sevenoaks JTB has now been submitted. 
 
It remains that the requests for each of these changes has come from the community, from residents who have 
ongoing problems with access and no alternative but to put up with the inconsiderate parking of others. 
 
The proposals could be dropped, but I could give no clue as to what the timescale would be for this to be revisited, 
save to say it is not likely to be in the near future as I am leaving the District for another Authority at the end of 
March.  
 
 
Andy Bracey FIHE 
Senior Engineer, Traffic & Parking 

Sevenoaks District Council, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 1HG 

Tel: 01732 227000 
Email: andy.bracey@sevenoaks.gov.uk 
Online: www.sevenoaks.gov.uk 

 
 
 

From: Maskell, Kevin [mailto   
Sent: 06 February 2015 15:01 
To: Andy Bracey 
Cc: Cllr Bracken, Elaine; Gary Connor; Richard Wilson; 'Steven.Noad@kent.gov.uk' 
Subject: Re: Changes to parking restrictions - TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Consultation response summaries and 
recommendations to JTB 
 

Dear Andy 
 
Further to the information you have provided below and in relation to other parking consultations in 
Westerham, it seems (as by well you are now aware) that there is an increasingly large ground swell of 
objections all round to most of the proposals in the Town. It seems that there are two problems. One that 

Page 163

Agenda Item 6

csinclair
Typewritten Text
Appendix E



Page 164

Agenda Item 6



3

         Implemented as proposed 

         Withdrawn 

         Reduced (providing it does not essentially change the restriction) 
  
What we cannot do is change the type of restriction (say from double yellow to single yellow, or to permit parking, 
or parking bays), nor can we extend the proposals further than advertised, as these would then become new 
proposals. 
  
The purpose of the restriction is to provide access and prevent obstruction – whilst residents of nearby roads want 
to use Farley Nursery as a car park, that isn’t the purpose of the public highway, and the Highway Code states that 
cars should not park around junctions and where it would cause an obstruction. 
  
Trying to drive in and out of Farley Nursery is a problem in a normal family car ‐ anything larger is likely to have 
significant problems or not be able to, and we have to consider that turning movements in are not necessarily the 
same as turning movements out (vehicle turning dynamics and “swept paths” are different depending on direction) 
and it may even be that vehicles can get in, but can’t get out! 
  
We have to consider the everyday needs of residents to have access, and the exceptional circumstances where 
emergency services may need to attend – fire appliances and ambulances may find it impossible to attend to the 
cul‐de‐sac. 
  
We are proposing these changes because there have been requests and we are making other changes in the area 
and there are economies of scale in progressing a number of changes rather than do them piecemeal – if we had not 
had other things to do in the area, we would have left this with KCC to resolve as maintaining access to the Highway 
and preventing obstruction is primarily the responsibility of KCC as the Highway Authority. 
  
If the Board decides not to implement the proposals, KCC could still get requests that they would need to action, 
and would have to go through the same process again – but they may be more stringent about setting aside 
residents objections about loss of on‐street parking. 
  
To my view the Board should consider the need for preventing obstruction and maintaining access to be a higher 
priority than the convenience of parking, as there are safety implications with obstructive parking, and no right to 
expect to be able to park on the road but ultimately it is for the Board to decide. 
  
  
Andy Bracey FIHE 
Senior Engineer, Traffic & Parking 
Sevenoaks District Council, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 1HG 
Tel: 01732 227000 
Email: andy.bracey@sevenoaks.gov.uk 
Online: www.sevenoaks.gov.uk 
  
  
  

From: Maskell, Kevin [mailto:   
Sent: 15 January 2015 10:49 
To: Andy Bracey 
Subject: Re: Changes to parking restrictions - TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Consultation response summaries and 
recommendations to JTB 
  

Thank you Andy. I am in discussions with individuals giving discussing the facts of the case plus 
procedures. 
  
How much room for change prior to board if residents can come up wit a compromise? 
  
Best wishes and thanks again. 

Page 165

Agenda Item 6



4

  
Kevin 
  
  
  
  
  
Sent from Samsung Mobile 
 
 
 
-------- Original message -------- 
From: Andy Bracey <Andy.Bracey@sevenoaks.gov.uk>  
Date:  
To: "Cllr Maskell, Kevin" <cllr.maskell@sevenoaks.gov.uk>  
Cc: Richard Wilson <richard.wilson@sevenoaks.gov.uk>  
Subject: FW: Changes to parking restrictions - TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Consultation response summaries 
and recommendations to JTB  

Cllr Maskell 
  
Richard Wilson asked me to send you the assessment of the consultation responses on the parking proposals for 
Farley Nursery and Westbury Terrace, Westerham, so I am re‐sending the email with all the consultation response 
summaries. 
  
  
Andy Bracey FIHE 
Senior Engineer, Traffic & Parking 
Sevenoaks District Council, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 1HG 
Tel: 01732 227000 
Email: andy.bracey@sevenoaks.gov.uk 
Online: www.sevenoaks.gov.uk 
  
  
  

From: Andy Bracey  
Sent: 08 January 2015 16:56 
To: Cllr Fleming, Peter; Cllr Dawson, Ann; Cllr Raikes, Simon; Cllr Walshe, Roger; Cllr Purves, Elizabeth; Cllr Dickins, 
Matthew; Cllr Towell, Paul; Cllr Eyre, Andrew; Cllr Hunter, Avril; Cllr Hogarth, Roddy; Cllr Ball, Laurence; Cllr George, 
Angela; Cllr Sargeant, Janet; Cllr Lindsay, Stephen; Cllr Davison, Jill; Cllr Davison, Richard; Cllr Scholey, John; Cllr 
Orridge, Robert; Cllr Chetram, Ingrid; Cllr McGarvey, Philip; Cllr Maskell, Kevin; Cllr Bracken, Elaine; Town.Council, 
Westerham; Town.Council, Edenbridge, Clerk; Town.Council, Sevenoaks; Town.Council, Swanley; Parish.Council, 
Crockenhill; Parish.Council, Farningham 
Cc: 'Steven.Noad@kent.gov.uk'; Gary Connor; Richard Wilson; Ashley Ralph (ashley.ralph@kent.gov.uk) 
Subject: Changes to parking restrictions - TRO 2013 Amendment 2 - Consultation response summaries and 
recommendations to JTB 
  
Dear Cllrs and Parish Councils 
  
Please find attached the summaries of the consultation responses for the proposed parking changes across the 
District for your information.  
  
Each location has it’s own summary, and the PDF has an index for easy reference.  I’ve also included the plans that 
were sent out to the consultation. 
  

Page 166

Agenda Item 6



5

These recommendations will be take to JTB in March for the Board to consider, for implementation sometime later 
this year.  The Board will have access to all of the consultation responses, and redacted versions will be online after 
the meeting. 
  
Andy Bracey FIHE 
Senior Engineer, Traffic & Parking 
Sevenoaks District Council, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 1HG 
Tel: 01732 227000 
Email: andy.bracey@sevenoaks.gov.uk 
Online: www.sevenoaks.gov.uk 
  

 
This email has been scanned for all viruses by the MessageLabs Email 
Security System. 
 
This email has been scanned for all viruses by the MessageLabs Email 
Security System. 
 

               
- Save money on your gas and electricity bills with our free and impartial energy comparison service 
Sevenoaks Switch and Save 
- We value your feedback, comment online on the service you receive from us: Click here to comment  
 
 
This email may contain privileged/confidential information. It is intended solely for the person to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient you may 
not copy, deliver or disclose the content of this message to anyone. In such case please destroy/delete the message immediately and notify the sender by reply 
email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of Sevenoaks District Council shall be understood as 
neither given nor endorsed by the Council. All email communications sent to or from Sevenoaks District Council may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in 
accordance with relevant legislation.  
 
Visit the Council at WWW.SEVENOAKS.GOV.UK  
 
This email has been scanned for all viruses by the MessageLabs Email 
Security System. 
 
This email has been scanned for all viruses by the MessageLabs Email 
Security System. 

Page 167

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD – 10 MARCH 2015. 

BAT & BALL AREA LOCAL CYCLING INFRASTRUCTURE PROPOSALS. 

Report of the: Strategic Development Transport Planner – Adrian Pigott. 

Status: For information / approval. 

Chairman: Mr Nick Chard. 

Head of Service: Head of Transportation – Tim Read. 

 

 

Introduction. 

 

Kent County Council (KCC) Highways, Transportation & Waste is holding funding 

secured via Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to improve 

cycling facilities at the Bat & Ball Junction and nearby locations. The Section 106 

Agreements are linked to Sevenoaks Quarry (Tarmac Ltd/Ibstock Brick Hudsons Ltd) 

and Sainsbury’s Supermarket.  

 

Layout and signal improvements are set to be introduced at the Bat & Ball junction in 

the Summer of 2015, which incorporate standard cycling infrastructure 

improvements such as Cycling Advanced Stop Lines within the design. The 

proposals presented in this report are separate from the main Bat & Ball junction 

improvement and neither set of proposals are directly inter-related. However, to 

minimise disruption, any works proposed in this report would be coordinated and 

delivered simultaneously. 

 

The Sevenoaks Cycling Strategy highlights a number of key routes and 

improvements within the Sevenoaks area which should – over time – facilitate 

increased levels of cycling in the District and improve the safety of existing cyclists. 

The Strategy was developed by Kent County Council (KCC) in partnership with 

Sevenoaks District Council (SDC) and provides an overarching framework for the 

development of cycling in Sevenoaks, approved by the Sevenoaks Joint 

Transportation Board (JTB) in March 2012. 

 

The proposals presented here form small components of that overarching Strategy 

which is supported at both District and County level. 

 

In Autumn 2014, KCC consulted on three separate schemes, including: 

(1)    Bradbourne Vale Road (see figure 3); 

(2)    Hospital Road (see figure 4); 

(3)    Crampton’s Road (see figure 5); 

Page 169

Agenda Item 7



These are described in more detail below, whilst the scheme consultation letters and 

supporting (conceptual) designs form Appendices 1-3 towards the end of this report. 

 

FIGURE 1) BRADBOURNE VALE RD / HOSPITAL RD – LOCATIONS: 

 

 
 

 

FIGURE 2) CRAMPTON’S ROAD – LOCATION: 

 

 
 

Page 170

Agenda Item 7



 

Scheme 1) Bradbourne Vale Road. 

 

Recommendation 6c (p.46) of the Sevenoaks Cycling Strategy proposes a route 

from Bat and Ball junction to St John’s Road/Dartford Road junction (along 

Bradbourne Vale Road and St. John’s Road). 

 

St. John’s Road and St. John’s Hill (which is the alternative north-south link) are 

relatively steep but St. John’s Road has significantly lower traffic volumes. The 

strategy suggests the footway on the southern side of Bradbourne Vale Road should 

be signed as a shared route facility for cyclists travelling in an east-west direction, 

and that the path could be widened if space permits. 

 

The proposal forms part of a series of links which would facilitate a north-south cycle 

route between Otford and Sevenoaks. This section would provide an alternative 

route to St John’s Hill for cyclists travelling from north to south (in an uphill direction). 

 

A route with lower traffic volumes is often preferable on hilly terrain due to the speed 

differential between cyclists and vehicles increasing, cyclists may also wander a little 

as their speed is reduced. For cyclists travelling from south to north (downhill) St 

John’s Road may be less problematic. This route would also link to the proposed 

east-west route across Sevenoaks, as presented in the Strategy. 

 

The existing path cannot simply be signed as a shared (pedestrian-cycle) facility as it 

is too narrow and would endanger the safety of existing pedestrian users. 

 

Reflecting this fact, this proposal suggested widening the existing footway via the 

removal of a grass verge and associated trees on the south side of Bradbourne Vale 

Road between Otford Road and St John’s Road, to create a shared 

footway/cycleway. It also includes the relocation of existing lighting columns and 

signs and installation of new signs indicating the status of the path as shared use 

cycle/foot path. 

 

 

Page 171

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Figure 3. Looking west along Bradbourne Vale Rd, verge for the proposed cycling scheme far 

left. 

 

 

 

Scheme 2) Hospital Road – Contra-flow cycle lane. 

 

Hospital Road is a short north-south link between Seal Road and St John’s Hill. The 

Southern half of the road is two-way and the northern section is one-way, with a “No 

Entry” sign at the junction with Seal Road/Hillingdon Avenue. The Sevenoaks 

Cycling Strategy – Recommendation 3 (p.41) – suggests a cycle entry point 

segregated from the opposing traffic flow should be provided on the one-way section 

to allow cyclists travelling south to use the road.  

 

This route would provide an alternative link for cyclists from Greatness travelling 

towards the town centre which avoids the busy Bat & Ball junction. 

 

This initiative would see the construction of a build-out at the Hillingdon 

Avenue/Hospital Road junction to create a segregated contraflow (against the 

directional flow of traffic) cycle lane. Installing cycle lane signing and road markings 

up to the Sevenoaks Hospital entrance to create a contra-flow cycle lane to a point 

where two-way traffic exists.  

 

Page 172

Agenda Item 7



 

Figure 4. Looking north towards the A25 (Seal Road) on Hospital Road. 

 

 

 

 

Scheme 3) Crampton’s Road. 

 

There is an existing cycle route running from Sainsburys roundabout to just prior to 

Crapmton’s Road. This begins on the eastern footway and then joins the 

carriageway as an advisory route. Crampton’s Road is a quiet residential street amd 

at its southern end there is a short section of path which rejoins Otford Road. 

 

Recommendation 6b (p.45) of the Sevenoaks District Cycling Strategy suggests 

that’s from the end of the existing route (on the eastern footway to the junction with 

Crampton’s Road) should be widened and signed as a shared use cycleway. This is 

the second in a series of links which would provide a north-south link between Otford 

and Sevenoaks. 

 

In line with the aspirations of the Strategy, the proposed scheme would involve 

widening the existing footway adjacent to Otford Road and construction of a new, 

realigned path in the verge at Crampton’s Road. The redundant footpath would be 

excavated and topsoil and turf laid. It includes installation of associated 

signing/lining. 

 

Page 173

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Figure 5. Looking south along Otford Road, Crampton’s Road to the left. 

 

 

Consultation outcomes. 

Out of the three proposals, the Bradbourne Vale Road proposal met with significant 

objections from residents as it would result in the loss of a line of established trees 

which separate the existing footpath and homes from the highway and play a key 

part in the street scene. These include a Horse Chestnut, Flowering Cherry and a 

large mature Sycamore tree, visible in the photograph presented as Figure 3. 

The range of comments that were received can be seen is summarised below: 

 

Scheme (1):  Bradbourne Vale Road. 

Consultation leaflets were distributed to local business and residents immediately 

adjacent to the proposed scheme. The majority of the households consulted residing 

immediately adjacent to the proposed scheme submitted objections, as did a local 

business owner, Sevenoaks Town Council and Sevenoaks Cycling Forum.  

Summarised as follows:  

 

From Object/Support Comments 

Business 
 
 

Object Concerned as to conflict regarding access point to 
business, buses and cyclists. 

Resident Object Questions need. 
Very low cycle usage. 
Removal of trees will increase run-down appearance 
of area. 
Trees protect and assist in reducing pollution. 

Page 174

Agenda Item 7



 

Resident Object Objection to felling trees. 
Low cycle usage. 
Trees importance with wildlife. 
Verge protection. 
 

Resident Object Removal of healthy trees. 
Negligible benefit to cyclists. 
Increased danger to peds and children by removing 
verge buffer. 
Danger of damage to vehicles from passing cyclists. 
 

Resident Object Loss of trees and aesthetic appearance. 
Trees and verge as natural safety zone. 
Abuse of double-yellow-lines and risk of parking on 
path. 
Location of refuse bags obstructing new footway. 
Questions whole idea of cycle improvements. 
 

Resident Support Glad to remove dangerous trees that will cause 
property damage in the future. 
Keen cyclists and will fully use it. 
Downside of losing green verge, but worth the small 
price. 
 

Sevenoaks 
Cycle 
Forum 

Object Questions improvement as they are only in isolation 
and not as complete corridor as suggested in 
strategy 

STC Object Loss of trees – amenity value. 
Negligible positive impact on cycle safety. 
Detrimental impact on pedestrian safety. 
 

 

It should be noted that this location forms part of Sevenoaks Air Quality Management 

Area (AQMA 12). The removal of trees contradicts the general principal of 

environmental improvements, in that trees are proven to help filter harmful small 

particulates from vehicle emissions, as well as acting as a natural screen between 

the local dwellings and the highway.   

Reflecting the fact that there is no way of addressing concerns about the loss of the 

trees, and considering objections from both the Town Council and Sevenoaks 

Cycling Forum, it is proposed that this scheme is removed from the proposals. 

However, it should be noted that there is no other option available in terms of 

facilitating a north to south route that avoids the heavily trafficked and relatively 

steep St. John’s Hill. 

It is not considered that failure to construct such a link significantly undermines the 

principles of the Sevenoaks Cycling Strategy, which represented a first 

Page 175

Agenda Item 7



phase/starting point for the development of cycling across the District. It must be 

recognised that on occasions, the merits of introducing a specific piece of cycling 

infrastructure are outweighed by the type of work that is required to achieve such, so 

as to meet national guidelines that would mean groups of pedestrians and a cyclist 

could pass each other with ease. 

 

Recommendation:  Remove the Bradbourne Vale Road scheme from proposals. 

 

  

Page 176

Agenda Item 7



Scheme (2):  Hospital Road. 

 

Residents of Hospital Road living immediately adjacent to the proposed scheme 

were consulted and highlighted local parking issues linked to the hospital. The issue 

of drivers breaching an “Access only” arrangement, using Hospital Road as a rat-run 

between Seal Road (A25) and St.John’s Hill (A225) was also presented. 

Concerns also related to road safety in terms of vehicles reversing from private 

driveways and cyclists coming in to conflict with the parked vehicles of Blue Badge 

holders. Sevenoaks District Council and Sevenoaks Town Council also objected to 

the proposal, however it should be noted that this link provides a key connection as 

part of the overarching Strategy which Sevenoaks District Council helped developed 

and approve. Sevenoaks Cycling Forum support the proposal. 

Comments summarised as follows: 

From Object/Support Comments 

Resident Safety 
comments 

Considers scheme unsafe.  Have to reverse out of 
driveway and consider it inevitable they will hit a 
cyclists. 
Blue badge holders park on DYL’s at busy times 

Resident Safety 
comments 

Cars abusing no-entry. 
Blue badge parking on DYL’s 
Conflict of signing as Access Only 

Sevenoaks 
District 
Council 

Object Blue badge holders parking on DYL’s will force 
cyclists in to on-coming traffic. 
If not made mandatory with no-loading they will 
object.  With mandatory lane and loading ban will 
support 

STC Object Poor value for money.  Promote mixing of cyclists 
and pedestrians. 

Sevenoaks 
Cycle 
Forum 

Support Support proposal as contained within strategy 

 

To address these concerns, loading/unloading restrictions would be introduced and 

the cycle lane would be made mandatory. This would mean that Blue Badge holders 

would be prevented from parking in the cycle lane and parking enforcement would 

be undertaken. Any encroachment in to the cycle lane by moving traffic could be 

enforced with a fine. Road Safety concerns are not considered to be severe, in that 

vehicles reversing off private driveways already have to be aware of pedestrians 

using the existing footpath. 

  

Page 177

Agenda Item 7



Recommendation: Continue the Hospital Road scheme to detailed design and 

construction. 

 

 

Scheme (3):  Cramptons Road. 

A local business and small number of adjacent residents were consulted, neither of 

which responded. However, both Sevenoaks Cycle Forum and Sevenoaks Town 

Council objected. They voiced concerns regarding value for money and the delivery 

of parts of a corridor as opposed to a whole-corridor approach, which would be cost 

prohibitive to KCC. 

Summarised as follows: 

 

From Object/Support Comments 

Sevenoaks 
Cycle 
Forum 

Object Questions improvement as they are only in isolation 
and not as complete corridor as suggested in 
strategy 

STC Object Poor value for money.  Little positive impact for cycle 
safety.  Detrimental impact on pedestrian safety. 

 

Whilst KCC recognises this proposal provides only a small improvement in a longer 

identified route from the Sevenoaks Cycling Strategy, we believe it is important to 

establish infrastructure which means that cyclists do not have to use junctions if at all 

possible and this proposal facilitates such. The shared pedestrian/cycle path would 

be designed as per good-practice guidelines so as to ensure pedestrians and 

cyclists had enough space to pass with ease and neither was at risk of injury. 

The Sevenoaks Cycling Strategy also recognises the fact this is a first phase/starting 

point for the development of cycling infrastructure across the wider area. The need 

for the incremental implementation of the Strategy – reflecting the lack of significant 

available funds in this era of economic austerity – also needs to be acknowledged.  

 

Recommendation:  Continue the Crampton’s Road scheme to detailed design and 

construction. 

Page 178

Agenda Item 7



Sources of Information: Kent County Council Highways & 

Transportation 

03000 413 912 

 

Contact Officer(s): 
Adrian Pigott – Strategic Transport Planner   
or 
Nasser Sarrafan – Transport Development 
Manager 

03000 413 912 

 

  

Director of Highways, Transportation & Waste John Burr 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 179

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX (1) 

BRADBOURNE VALE ROAD CONSULTATION LETTER & DESIGN 

 

 

Page 180

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Page 181

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX (2) 

CRAMPTON’S ROAD CONSULTATION LETTER & DESIGN 

 

 

Page 182

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Page 183

Agenda Item 7



 

APPENDIX (3) 

HOSPITAL ROAD CONSULTATION LETTER & DESIGN 

 

Page 184

Agenda Item 7



 

Page 185

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Appendix 1 

 
 
To:   Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board  

By: Behdad Haratbar, Head of Programmed Works  

Date: 10 March 2015 

Subject:  Highway Drainage  

Classification: Information only  

 

Summary: To update Members on the approach to maintaining and 
improving the highway drainage system whilst ensuring that the 
customer is provided with a quality service against a background of 
increasing severe weather events.  
 
This paper was reported to the Kent County Council Environment and 
Transport Cabinet Committee on 5 December 2014 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The County Council is responsible for the maintenance of the 5,400 miles 

of public highway roads including 250,000 roadside drains (gullies) and 

associated drainage systems.  

 

1.2 The primary objectives of the highway drainage system are: 

 

a. Removal of surface water (from the carriageway) to maintain road 

safety and minimise nuisance, 

b. Effective sub-surface drainage to prevent damage to the structural 

integrity of the highway and maximise its lifespan, and, 

c. Minimise the impact of highway surface water on the adjacent 

environment including properties  

 

1.3 In recent years, numbers of prolonged and heavy rainfall events have 

increased, notably the winter of 2013/14. As prolonged, heavy rainfall 

events have become more frequent, the number of customer enquiries has 

increased year on year. The volume of customer enquiries now stands at 

twice that of 2009. In the last 12 months, around 10,000 enquiries related 

to drainage and flooding have been received.  Of these, 3,000 are related 

directly to highway flooding and 500 related to incidents of highway 

flooding that had resulted in damage to private properties. 

Page 187

Agenda Item 8



2 

 

1.4 The Highway Drainage service is split into two functions:  

 

• Maintenance  

• Repairs, renewals and improvements 

 

1.5 The approach taken to delivering the service has been outlined in a 

document called “Asset Management in Drainage”. In summary, this 

details the steps that we take to manage our drainage asset. The 

series of questions and answers emphasise the need to spend the 

right amount of money at the right time and explain our focus on 

sites where the risk to road users and residents is the highest. 

This document can be found at Appendix A.  

 

1.6 This year, the County Council has increased capital investment in drainage 

infrastructure to £4.3m. This is enabling completion of an additional 120 

drainage improvement schemes in 2014/15. Investment has been 

prioritised on the basis of the following risks: 

 

• Highway Safety 

• Internal flooding of properties 

• Network disruption 

 

2. Financial Implications 

 

2.1 The allocated budget for highway drainage cleansing is £2,408,300. This a 

saving of £300,000 made as part of the wider Highway, Transportation and 

Waste efficiencies for 2014/15. The maintenance regime outlined in this 

report has been developed on the basis of the current budget allocation 

and feedback from stakeholders to ensure a balance between the needs of 

the asset and the demands of the County Council’s customers.  

 

2.2 The approach outlined for capital investment in highway drainage 

infrastructure ensures that the allocated budget is spent effectively 

 

3. Policy Framework 

 

3.1 The approaches to service delivery outlined in this report fulfil the principle 

of achieving value for money.  

 

4. The Report 

 

Maintenance 

 

4.1 In December 2010, a change of approach to cleaning highway drains was 

approved. There was a transition from providing a purely reactive service 

to delivering routine maintenance on a cyclical basis.  

Page 188

Agenda Item 8



3 

 

4.2 At the point of moving from a reactive to a planned approach information 

about the quantum and location of drainage assets was limited. An 

understanding of the quantum of assets and traffic management required 

to carry out maintenance activities has been developed. This data is being 

used to inform planning and programming and enhance service delivery at 

an operational and strategic level.  

 

4.3 The departure from a predominantly reactive service combined with very 

wet weather throughout 2012 resulted in an initial decline in customer 

satisfaction. However this improved significantly and by April 2013 

customer satisfaction had reached 87%.   

 

4.4 In 2013, the annual Tracker Survey asked:  

 

“How satisfied or dissatisfied are you that road drains/ gullies are kept 

clean and working in your local area?”  

 

Comments and feedback indicated that blocked drains were continuing to 

be a hot topic for Members and Parish Councils, particularly in rural areas.  

 

4.5 In response to the feedback from the Tracker Survey and in light of the 

need to make significant revenue savings, the way in which drainage 

maintenance is delivered was subject to a further review. The table below 

details cleansing activities undertaken from September 2011 and the 

frequencies currently being trialled.    

Road Type/ Risk 

Category 

Road Length 

(miles) 

Number 

of 

Gullies 

Cleansing 

Frequency 

2011 

Cleansing 

Frequency 

2014 

Hotspots (250 

locations) 

NA NA Every 3-6 

months 

Every 3-6 

months 

High Speed Roads 160 8820 Every 6 

months 

Every 12 

months 

Strategic and Locally 

Important Routes 

1370 41,191 Every 12 

months 

Every 12 

months 

Minor Urban1 Roads 2190 112,776 Every 2 

years 

Targeted 

Cleansing 

Minor Rural Roads 1650 85,078 Every 2 

years 

Targeted 

Cleansing 

Totals 5370 247,865 - - 

 

Page 189

Agenda Item 8



4 

4.6 The frequency of cyclical cleansing on high speed roads was reduced from 

six monthly to annually to be consistent with the frequency of maintenance 

on the County’s other main roads. This was part of a service wide saving 

that came into effect on 1st April and applied to all routine maintenance on 

the high speed road network.   

 

4.7 Drains on minor urban roads are generally less prone to becoming blocked 

due to protection by kerb lines, the nature of the traffic using the roads, 

street sweeping undertaken by District Council and self-cleansing 

capabilities of the carrier pipes. Examining the data collected from routine 

walked inspections undertaken by the Highway Inspectorate between April 

and September has emphasised this point. Blocked drains were reported 

on less than 10% of the roads inspected.  

 

4.8 A targeted approach to cleansing is now being trialled on minor urban 

roads. Rather than a cleansing crew attending every road once every two 

years, each road is inspected at least annually and resources are focused 

where the need is highest.  

 

4.9 Drains on minor rural roads are often more prone to becoming blocked. 

Gullies can become overgrown by verges and hedge rows and are 

particularly vulnerable during peaks in agricultural activities or when silt is 

washed off fields during prolonged or heavy rainfall. It is not financially 

viable to increase the cleansing frequency and therefore a community lead 

approach is being trialled.  

 

4.10 The principle behind this approach is to utilise the good relationships that 

have been fostered by Highway Stewards with Members and Parish 

Councils. Over the past three years, the Highway Stewards have 

developed a detailed knowledge of issues in their area. The intention here 

is to use this local knowledge of community issues to inform our 

programmes of gully cleansing.  

 

4.11 Cleansing is now being undertaken in response to enquiries from 

Members, Parish Councils and customers. Each site is inspected by a 

highway steward, assessed and prioritised on the basis of highest risk first. 

The assessment criteria include, risk to highway safety and risk of internal 

property flooding.  

 

Repairs, renewals and improvements 

 

4.12 Highway flooding causes significant level of disruption; it affects movement 

of people and goods, therefore adversely affecting the local economy. It 

also causes significant damage to the highway network; at surface level, 

flood water scours the surface of the carriageway and footway, which will 

allow ingress of water to the layer below. In the short term it will result in 

cracking and development of potholes. Flood water also penetrates the 

lower layers of road construction washing away fine materials and in time 

Page 190

Agenda Item 8



5 

results in large failures of the road structure which may require significant 

repairs or even reconstruction.   

 

4.13 The weather last winter highlighted numerous pinch points in the drainage 

network. Some of these are being addressed by the implementation of an 

enhanced cleansing regime however in a large number of cases work is 

required to improve the functionality of the system.  

 

4.14 The annual capital budget allocation in recent years has been around 

£2.7m. This has enabled  the completion of around 800 priority minor 

repair and small improvements and a small number of larger improvement 

schemes each year.  Nevertheless, there are many more sites that need 

attention and this has been demonstrated by the 3,500 enquiries received 

last winter.  

 

4.15 Details of the schemes scheduled for completion by the 31 March 2015 

can be found at Appendix B.   

 

5. Conclusion 

 

5.1 The regime adopted in September 2011 enabled us to develop a good 

knowledge of the drainage asset. Moving forward, we have taken on board 

feedback from stakeholders and tailored the service to respond to 

customer demand, asset need and the financial challenges.  

 Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Members note this report 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Background documents: 

 
Appendices 
 
Contact officer: 
 
Kathryn Lewis 
Drainage & Flooding Manager 
03000 418 181 
kathryn.lewis@kent.gov.uk  
 

Page 191

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Asset Management in Highways 

What asset management means for drainage assets 

Introduction 

This short guide outlines the steps that we take to manage our ‘drainage asset’.   This 

includes roadside drains, soakaways, ponds, lagoons, pumping stations, highway ditches and 

thousands of kilometres of connecting pipe.  

This guide is set out in a series of 12 questions and answers we have developed from 

discussing asset management with the Public, elected Members and Parish/Town Councils.   

1. What is Asset Management? 

Asset management is the term used to describe a common sense approach to maintenance 

and future investment decisions for all the parts that make up our highway. It is about 

spending the right amount of money at the right time to keep our assets working properly to 

meet the needs of our customers now and in the future.  

For example, if we spend £1,000 cleaning a soakaway every two years it will keep working for 

up to 30 years. If we don’t clean the soakaway, we may need to spend £30,000 replacing it 

after just 10 years. 

2. What are drainage assets? 

The drainage asset is made up of:  

Asset The amount we look after 

Roadside drains 250,000 

Ponds and Lagoons 250 

Pumping Stations 15 

Soakaways 8,500 

 

3. Why do KCC need to know where all these assets are? 

We continually collect information on all our new, replacement and improved drainage assets. 

This includes where they are as well as information about the asset itself such as the size of 

the drain and where it drains to. 

We use the information that we collect to plan routine maintenance work, make decisions 

about where to invest our money and set the levels of service that our customers can expect 

from us.  

The number of drainage assets in Kent is currently increasing each year due to new housing 

and business developments being built. 

4. Why do KCC need to know what condition assets are in? 

Once we know what our assets are and where they are located, we need to know what 

condition they are in. This information helps us to make informed decisions about how often 

to maintain them and where we need to invest our money to make improvements and keep 

the drainage system functioning as it should. Page 193

Agenda Item 8



We regularly inspect our assets and use information from customers to help assess their 

condition and understand what needs to be done to keep them functioning correctly in the 

most cost effective way. This helps us manage our future budget needs and understand what 

could happen if, for example, the budget we need is not fully available.  

5. How often do KCC check what condition assets are in? 

There are two types of checks, planned inspections and reactive inspections.  

Planned inspections include highway safety inspections and condition checks carried out as 

part of our cyclical maintenance regime: 

o Our team of 12 highway inspectors carry out visual checks to make sure the highway 

assets are in a safe condition. This includes checking that drain covers are not broken 

or missing. We carry out this kind of check at least once every 12 months. 

o Our drainage cleansing crews look at the condition of the drains on main roads and test 

each one by filling it with water and checking that it is able to flow away. We carry out 

these kind of checks at least once every 12 months.  

Reactive inspections are carried out in response to enquiries and generate ad hoc and 

emergency works, for example cleaning blocked drains that are causing the road to flood and 

repairing collapsed road drains.  

6. How do KCC decide how much to spend on each asset? 

When we are prioritising drainage works we think about the risk that flooding poses to road 

users and residents: 

o What do we need to do to make sure that the road doesn’t flood? 

o If the road floods, does it create a hazard to road users? 

o If the road floods, does it cause a lot of disruption? 

o If the road floods, are people’s homes affected? 

We use the information we have collected about our drainage assets to help us answer these 

questions and decide what we need to do to keep the drainage system working and keep road 

users and people’s homes as safe as we can from flooding. 

Sometimes the weather can create an increased need demand for maintenance and reactive 

works such as flood clearance. We ensure that budget is available to respond to these 

situations.  

When we don’t have the budget to do everything that is needed, we prioritise works with the 

budget that we have.  

7. Are some assets more important than others and does the type of road affect 

how much KCC spends on it? 

All assets are important and we have a statutory duty to ensure that the highway is safe to 

use but, we have to work within our overall budget. We decided what work is needed and 

when it should be done by thinking about where the risk to road users and residents is the 

highest.  

Some of the things we think about include the following:  

 Page 194

Agenda Item 8



o The type of road, for example, whether it is a high speed road, a main road, an estate 

road or a country lane 

o The amount of traffic that uses the road, for example is it a main route in and out of a 

town or is it a minor road only used by a handful of drivers each day 

o The impact if the road is closed, for example, the road might only be used by a handful 

of people but it may also be the only route to get to their homes  

o The impact on residential property, for example, when the drains are blocked do 

homes get flooded 

 

8. How do KCC decide when repairs are needed? 

Whilst we know we need to react and fix dangerous situations quickly, this is not a cost 

effective way of working as we have to send crews specifically to these locations and more 

time is spent travelling rather than fixing.  

We can clearly get more done for our budget if we plan the work that need to be done. By 

planning ahead and maintaining the assets at the right time, it means we can do more with 

less and keep the asset at its required condition for longer.  

9. How do KCC let customers know what service they can expect? 

Our response to emergency or dangerous situations is the same across all our assets – we 

arrive on site within 2 hours.  

For more routine enquiries we normally respond in 28 days 

Other more complex requests will take us time to investigate and arrange remediation works.  

The levels of service we can deliver is clearly linked to the ‘need’ of the assets, maintaining 

safety and the share of the budget it is allocated.  

We aim to meet customer expectations wherever possible. We do however welcome support 

and help from community groups and parishes. 

Our aim is to be clear to customers the levels of service they can expect from us for each 

asset.  

10. Where do KCC publish the level of service? 

We will publish on the KCC website the work we plan to do during the year so customers can 

see how drainage assets are looked after, the levels of service you can expect and when work 

will be carried out.  

11. How can customers contact KCC to help look after assets? 

If you see a drain that is causing a problem please report it to us using our online web form 

or if you are concerned about dangerous flooding call our contact centre which is available 

24/7 on 03000 41 81 81. We have also put information on the website entitles “how you can 

help” if you want to look drains near you. We encourage local communities to help enhance 

the level of service we deliver and we have produced guidance which is also published on the 

KCC website.  

It is helpful if you can give us as much information as possible when reporting a problem. We 

need: 

Page 195

Agenda Item 8



o The number or name of the house the problem is outside or another landmark to help 

us locate it.  

o The name of the road 

o The name of the town or village 

o What is wrong, for example “ the drain is blocked and causing flooding across half the 

width of the road” 

The more information we have when the fault is reported, the quicker we can deal with it.  

12. How do KCC let customers know what has been done each year? 

Each year we will report and publish on the main KCC information about how we have spent 

our budget. We want to be open, honest and clear about how we look after our assets in 

Kent, where we spend our budget and what levels of service customers can expect.   

  

Page 196

Agenda Item 8



Appendix B – 2014/15 Drainage Improvement Schemes  

Location Description of Works  Order Value  Status 

Nash Road, 
Margate  

Installation of new soakaway £34,215.50 Complete 

Harvel Road, 
Meopham 

Installation of new soakaway £9,270.96 
Works 
ordered 

Pilgrims Way, Otford Installation of new soakaway £18,101.26 
Works 
ordered 

Milton Street, 
Swanscombe 

Extension of lagoon and additional soakaway £30,000.00 
Works 
ordered 

Knoll Hill, Aldington Installation of French drains and resurfacing £15,925.00 Scheduled 

Stowting Hill, 
Stowting 

Outfall extension and resurfacing £15,916.00 Complete 

Canterbury Road, 
Bramling 

Upgrading existing drainage system £6,061.19 Scheduled 

Cranbrook Road, 
Speldhurst 

Installation of new gullies, chambers and pipework £22,782.58 Complete 

Wrotham Road, 
Meopham  

Installation of new Soakaways £18,997.31 Complete 

Mackenders Lane, 
Aylesford 

Installation of new drainage system £18,937.68 Complete 

Feather Bed Lane, 
Mersham 

Upsize existing culvert and install new culvert lo link drainage 
ditches under highway 

£4,779.42 Complete 

Stockham Lane, 
Swingfiled 

New gullies and drainage £8,027.00 Complete 

Wingham Rd, 
Ickham and Well 

Kerbing and gullies £4,969.00 Scheduled 

London Rd, West 
Kingsdown 

Installation of new soakaways, gullies and pipework £41,206.00 Complete 

Higham Road, 
Tonbridge 

Ditch improvements £20,967.00 Scheduled 

Wallbridge Lane, 
Upchurch 

New drainage system £22,697.86 Complete 

Hockers Lane, 
Thurnham 

Installation of new soakaway £7,805.50 Complete 

Saxons Drive, 
Maidstone 

New Soakaway £8,679.61 Scheduled 

Westwood Lane, 
Broadstairs 

New drainage system £9,699.12 Scheduled 

The Lane, Guston New drainage system £9,463.92 Scheduled 

Elms Vale Road, 
Dover 

Installation of new Soakaways £26,190.98 Scheduled 

Canterbury Road, 
Hawkinge 

Pond improvements £28,538.62 Scheduled 

Willesborough 
Road, Ashford 

Installation of new Catchpits £8,147.92 
Works 
ordered 

Sole Street, 
Cobham 

Installation of new Soakaways £9,897.14 
Works 
ordered 

Lower Hartlip Road, 
Hartlip 

Dredge Pond and bank protection £48,434.31 Complee 

Snodland Bypass Installation of french drainage and grips £20,248.07 Complete 

Forge Lane, East 
Farleigh 

Proposed construction of soakaway  £3,899.95 Complete 

High st, Eastchurch New gullies and drainage £10,579.00 Complete 

Page 197

Agenda Item 8



Cooting Road, 
Aylesham 

Installation of new Soakaways £19,261.56 Complete 

Otterham Quay 
Lane 

Installation of new drainage system £21,818.75 Complete 

Watling Street, 
Stone 

Installation of new 3 stage interceptor £8,255.76 Complete 

Green Lane, 
Whitfield 

Installation of new Soakaways £10,401.63 Complete 

Seabrook Road, 
Hythe 

Replace linear draiinage at the junction of Cliff Road and 
investigate and repair any defects restricting water flow in 
culvert 

£5,998.41 Complete 

Maidstone Road, 
Hadlow 

200m section of ditch requires major dig out, weeding and 
disposal of waste 

£2,044.00 Complete 

Sutton Valence Hill, 
Maidstone 

Installation of filter Drain £2,911.07 Complete 

Canterbury Road, 
Molash 

Repair defective pipework and regrade verge £724.70 Complete 

Ballards Hill. 
Goudhurst 

Repair Works £2,072.86 Complete 

Deans Bottom, 
Bredgar 

Installation of new gullies and soakaways £23,383.97 Complete 

South Street, Selling Installation of new soakaways and additional drainage £27,164.70 
Further work 
required 

Langton Road, 
Tunbridge Wells 

Upgrade existing drainage system £2,273.53 Complete 

Hatham Green 
Lane, Stansted 

Dredge Pond and install overflow soakaway £9,875.27 Complete 

Station Road, 
Aylesford 

Installation of new drainage system £13,574.87 Complete 

Canterbury Road, 
Brooksend 

Installation of new drainage system and pond clearance £10,000.19 Complete 

Canterbury Road, 
Brabourne 

Installation of gullies and discharge into disused chalk pit £5,270.41 Complete 

Shalloak Road, 
Sturry 

Installation of new gullies and channel system £6,121.78 Complete 

Church Walk, East 
Malling 

Replace culvert £1,703.29 Complete 

Scragged Oak 
Road, Detling 

Installation of new soakaway and deep bore £17,270.05 Complete 

Slough Road, 
Rodmersham 

Installation of new soakaway £28,149.71 Complete 

Heath Road, East 
Farleigh 

Installation of new soakaway £16,405.26 Complete 

Hythe Road, 
Mersham 

Installation of new soakaway £29,904.35 Complete 

Ashford Road, 
Bethersden 

Replace blocked or broken pipework £2,200.85 Complete 

Bull Lane, Stockbury Installation of new soakaways and additional drainage £13,149.11 Complete 

High Street, 
Sittingbourne 

Repair Works £4,690.71 Complete 

Forge Lane, 
Whitfield 

Installation of new drainage system £1,582.98 Complete 

Plaxdale Green 
Road 

Installation of new soakaway £9,504.79 Complete 

Hamptons Road, 
Shipbourne 

Replace existing sytem due to roots £8,348.80 Complete 

Wootton Lane, 
Denton 

Pond improvements £9,778.91 Complete 

Page 198

Agenda Item 8



Church Lane, 
Detling 

Installation of new soakaway £23,767.78 Complete 

London Road, 
Aylesford 

Scoping exercise £18,386.33 Complete 

Church Road, 
Ashford 

Installation of Additional Gullies £5,018.23 Complete 

Caring Road, Leeds Replacement Culvert £4,309.68 Complete 

Cranbrook Road, 
Tenterden 

Pipe spring water to nearest highway gully £3,891.65 Scheduled 

Kingsdown Road, 
Walmer 

Install gullies and a small soakaway at each location £11,750.47 Complete 

Ranalagh Road, 
Deal 

Installation of new gullies and upgrade existing system £2,411.96 Complete 

Harriet Wood, East 
Farleigh 

Divert existing divcharge Point £21,963.95 Complete 

Heathfield Road, 
Maidstone 

Installation of new soakaway £13,168.54 Complete 

Castle Hill Avenue, 
Folkestone 

Renew gullies on roundabout £2,780.04 Complete 

Teston Lane, West 
Farleigh 

Replace existing drainage system due to damage £2,994.90 Complete 

Honey Lane, Otham Install drainage pipework to collect floodwater £16,270.26 Complete 

New Road Hill, 
Ashford 

Install new gullies and connect into ditch £3,634.79 Complete 

Knockwood Lane, 
Molash 

Installing new gullies £4,770.05 Complete 

Lucks Lane, 
Paddock Wood 

Upgrade Existing Culvert £13,638.44 Complete 

Warmlake Road, 
Chart Sutton 

Installation of new soakaway £20,066.41 Complete 

Sandwich Road, 
Ramsgate 

Ditch improvements £14,157.26 Complete 

London Road, 
Tonge 

Adjustment for scheme £48,765.18 Complete 

Watery Lane, 
Petham 

EA Grant £18,196.19 Complete 

Bramble Lane, Wye Installation of new gullies £8,666.41 Complete 

Dennne Manor 
Lane, Chilham 

Installation of new soakaway £15,161.95 Complete 

Horselees Road, 
Boughton 

New drainage system £17,582.94 Complete 

Manor Way, 
Swanscombe 

Installation of new pumping station £23,161.44 Complete 

Swanton Lane, 
Swingfield 

Installation of Soakaways and bank protection works £23,092.41 Complete 

The Street, 
Wickambreux 

Upgrade of existing drainage system £1,042.01 Complete 

Manor Way, 
Swanscombe 

Pumping Sation £48,318.81 Complete 

Strakers Hill, Sutton Installation of new soakaway £10,523.29 Complete 

Royal Engineers 
Road, Maidstone 

Gully cover replacements £5,949.04 Complete 

Tonbridge Rd, Leigh New drainage system £8,314.00 Complete 

Tonbridge Rd, Leigh New drainage system £812.00 Complete 

Page 199

Agenda Item 8



Rolvenden Hill, 
Rolvenden 

New drainage system £20,219.00 Complete 

The Orchard, 
Bearsted 

Installation of new soakaway £17,865.48 Complete 

Homestead Lane, 
Dover 

Installation of new drainage system and pond clearance £17,226.47 Scheduled 

Warden Road, 
Eastchurch 

Installation of new pond £41,172.60 Scheduled 

Church Hill, Sutton Pond improvements £13,020.69 Scheduled 

Warden Road, 
Eastchurch 

Ditch improvements £11,207.51 Scheduled 

Swanley Hill, 
Eastchurch 

Ditch improvements £11,207.51 Scheduled 

SANDOWN RD, 
SANDOWN 

Ditch improvements £6,135.00 Scheduled 

Bobb Dunn Way Installation of new system (Pumping Station) £100,000.00 
Works 
ordered 

Cherry Garden 
Lane, Folkestone 

Install additional pipework to bypass existing system and take 
water directly to watercourse 

£25,000.00 Design 

Tunstall Road, 
Tunstall 

Installation of new soakaways and additional drainage £21,101.65 Scheduled 

Hythe Road, 
Lymnpe 

Installation of French Drains and culverts £25,000.00 Design 

South Bush Lane, 
Upchurch 

Installation of new soakaway £25,000.00 Design 

Tonbridge Road, 
Teston 

Overflow system £15,000.00 Design 

Dering Road, Bridge Installation of new soakaway £25,000.00 Scheduled 

Ashford Road, 
Lenham 

Repairs and improvements to existing drainage, clearance of 
ditches to west and replacement of failed soakaways in 
Northdown Close 

£25,000.00 Design 

Boxted Lane, 
Newington 

Installation of new soakaways and additional drainage £24,000.00 Design 

Furnace Lane, 
Lamberhurst  

Installation of new drainage system £1,416.64 Complete 

Sea Wall, 
Dymchurch 

Install linear drainage and connect existing system in Sea Wall 
to highway drainge in the High Street 

£7,500.00 Design 

Claxfield Road, 
Lynstead 

Installation of new soakaway £25,000.00 Design 

Knock Hill, Stone Installation of French drains and culverts £15,000.00 Design 

High street, Lydd Install new gullies and connect to existing highway drainage £5,000.00 Design 

Griffin Hill, Dover Installation of new soakaways and additional drainage £20,000.00 Scheduled 

Lucks Hill, West 
Malling 

Investigation and improvement of ditches £30,000.00 Design 

Adelaide Road, 
Dover 

Installation of new gullies into existing system £1,225.92 
Works 
ordered 

Standen Street, 
Benenden 

Re-configuration of drainage system and clearing of ditches to 
use as attenuation during high flows as outfall pipe to rear of 
property cannot cope with peak flows 

£2,462.97 Scheduled 

Hambrook Lane, 
Chilham 

Repair pipe and extend it to discharge onto uncultivated land £3,500.00 Design 

Bradbourne Lane, 
Ditton 

Investigate feasibility of trench soakaway and construct £10,000.00 Scheduled 

Church Road, 
Tonge 

New drainage system £8,821.61 Scheduled 

Page 200

Agenda Item 8



Crockham Lane, 
Hernhill 

New drainage system £8,155.15 Scheduled 

Nursery Fields, Acol Installation of new soakaway £11,942.53 Scheduled 

Church Road, 
Smeeth 

Pond improvements £15,757.32 Complete 

High Street, 
Lyminge 

Pond improvements £7,660.00 Complete 

 

 

Page 201

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



To:              Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board  
 
By:              KCC Highways and Transportation 
  
Date:               10 March 2015  
 
Subject:    Highway Works Programme 2014/15 
 
Classification: Information Only  

 

 
Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for 
construction in 2014/15 
 

 
1. Introduction  
 
This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been 
programmed for delivery in 2014/15 
 

 
Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes – see Appendix A 
 
Street Lighting – see Appendix B 
 
Bridge Works- see Appendix C 
 
 
Conclusion  
 
1. This report is for Members information. 

 
 
Contact Officers: 
 
The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 41 81 81 
  
Carol Valentine             Highway Manager (West) 
Julian Cook     Sevenoaks District Manager  
Sue Kinsella    Street Lighting Manager 
Wendy Bousted   Carriageway Surface Treatment 
Alan Casson   Resurfacing Manager 
Mary Gillett   Major Projects Planning Manager  
Neil Tree   Footway Improvement Team Leader   
Katie Lewis    Drainage Manager 
Toby Butler    Intelligent Transport Systems Manager 
Tony Ambrose    Structures Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 203

Agenda Item 9



 

Appendix A – Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes 
 
The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not 
possible to carry out these works on the planned dates, new dates will be 
arranged and the residents will be informed by a letter drop to their homes. 
 

 
Machine Resurfacing – Contact Officer Mr Byron Lovell 
 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

A20 London Road Farningham 
A20 Teardrop roundabout and 
its approach from M25 J3 

 
Works programmed to 

start March 2015 

A20 London Road Farningham 
From the Teardrop 

Roundabout downhill to 
Dartford Road Roundabout. 

 
Works programmed to 

start April 2015 

  
Footway Improvement - Contact Officer Mr Neil Tree 
  

Road Name Parish Extent and Description of 
Works 

Current Status 

Brattlewood Sevenoaks 

From its junction with Garth 
Road to its junction with 

Beechmont Road - 
Replacement of existing 

asphalt surface and renewal of 
kerbs where required 

 
 

Works substantially 
completed 

Garth Road Sevenoaks 

From its junction with The 
Rise to its junction with Weald 

Road - Replacement of 
existing asphalt surface and 
renewal of kerbs where 

required 

Works substantially 
completed 

Childsbridge Lane Kemsing/Seal 
From its junction with Pilgrims 
Way to the Railway Bridge  

Works Commenced 
25/11/14 

Sundridge Road Chevening 
From its junction with Morants 
Court Road to Morants Court 

Farm 

 
Programmed to start 
2
nd
 February for 3 
weeks. 

Copperfields & 
Copperfields Orchard 

Kemsing 

Whole Length – Replacement 
of existing asphalt surface and 

renewal of kerbs where 
required 

 
Completed 

Cobden Road Sevenoaks 

From its junction with Cedar 
Road to its junction with 

Quakers Hall Lane – Slurry 
Surfacing 

 
Completed 

Page 204

Agenda Item 9



 
Appendix B – Street Lighting 

 
Structural testing of KCC owned street lights has identified the following as requiring 
replacement this financial year. 
 

 
Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella 
 

Road Name 
Column 
Ref 

Location Status 

POLHILL, Dunton Green 
Sevenoaks 

IUAP054 
IUAP065 
IUAP066 
IUAP067 
IUAP068 
IUAP086 

Top of Polhill 
Adj bus storage 
o/s The Retreat 
opp Garage 
o/s Calcutta Club 
near Garden Centre 

Expect work on site March 
2015  

WHITE HART WOOD 
Sevenoaks 

IWBX003 o/s 6a Completed 

MAIN ROAD 
Edenbridge 

ISEQ801 
ISEQ802 

Jw Four Elms Road 

Replace zebra crossing 
Belisha Beacons to 
improve lighting at 
crossing  
Work expected March 
2015 

AZALEA DRIVE 
IAAY801 
IAAY802 

 Adj 31/33 

Replace zebra crossing 
Belisha Beacons to 
improve lighting at 
crossing  
Work expected March 
2015 

LONDON ROAD 
Dunton Green 

ILBN111 
ILBN112 
ILBN114 
ILBN119 
ILBN120 
ILBN121 
ILBN122 
ILBN123 
ILBN124 
ILBN125 
ILBN126 
ILBN127 
ILBN131 
ILBN132 

 
o/s 24 
o/s 40 
o/s 41 
opp 92A 
o/s 106 
opp 110 
opp 128 
o/s School 
o/s School 
opp Barretts Rd 
o/s 151 
o/s 163 
opp Village Hall 
o/s 190 
 

 
Work expected March 
2015 

SYCAMORE DRIVE ISFW501 

 
jw Bartholomew Way 
*stop sign in poor 
condition” 

 
Work expected March 
2015 

Page 205

Agenda Item 9



GREEN COURT ROAD 
Crockenhill 

IGBM003 
IGBM004 
IGBM005 
IGBM006 
IGBM007 
IGBM008 

o/s 49 
o/s 55 
o/s 63 
o/s 71 
o/s 77 
end of road 

Worked expect March 
2015 

HIGH STREET 
Brasted 

IHBW001 
 to 
IHBW039 

Replacing ornate 
lanterns suffering from 
water ingress 

Worked expect March 
2015 

HIGH STREET 
Otford 

IHCY801 
IHCY802 

 o/s The Bull Pub 

Replace zebra crossing 
Belisha Beacons to 
improve lighting at 
crossing  
Work expected March 
2015 

 
 
 

 

Page 206

Agenda Item 9



Appendix C- Bridge Works 

 

Bridge Works – Contact Officer Tony Ambrose 

 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Castle Road Eynsford 
Refurbishment of Shoreham 

Castle East Bridge 

Works commenced 

12th  Jan 2015, 

programmed for 

completion by March 

2015 

 

 

Page 207

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 

 
 

 

1.1 Legal Implications 

1.1.1 Not applicable. 

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.2.1 Not applicable. 

1.3 Risk Assessment 

1.3.1 Not applicable. 

Contact: Carol Valentine/ Julian Cook– 03000 41 81 81  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 208

Agenda Item 9



To:      Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board  

By:    Tim Read, Head of Transportation 

Date:    10 March 2015 

Subject:      Highway Improvement Scheme Progress Report 

Classification:            Information only  

Summary:                     Recommendations: That Members note the progress of 
programmed highway improvements. 
 

 

Executive Summary:  This report describes the progress to date and anticipated progress 
over the next three months of all programmed highway improvements and those schemes that 
are expected to be included in Kent County Council’s 2014-15 Capital Programme. 

This report supports the Key aims of: Reducing speed, encouraging safer driving and 
tackling know speeding crash hotspots.  Also improving pedestrian safety, including measures 
to improve access for people with disabilities as indicated in the Sevenoaks Community Plan. 

This report supports the Key aims of: Reducing speed, encouraging safer driving and 
tackling know speeding crash hotspots.  Also improving pedestrian safety, including 
measures to improve access for people with disabilities as indicated in the Sevenoaks 
Community Plan. 

Appendices 

A. Highway Improvement Schemes. 

B. Member Highway Funded Schemes. 

Risk Assessment Statement 

1. None 

 

Contact officer: Steven Noad   

Tel: 03000 41 81 81 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 209

Agenda Item 10



 

Appendix A  

Location 
Description of 

works 
Current progress 

Anticipated Actions for next 3 months 
prior to JTB 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

a
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
o

u
t-

tu
rn

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 

Officer(s) 

B2173 Bartholomew 
Way roundabout junction 
with B258 Swanley Lane, 

Swanley 

Crash remedial 
measures;  

improvement 
measures at 
roundabout 

The scheme is designed and 
ready for implementation 

 

Works reprogrammed for  
March 2015 

£175K £175K 
Steven Noad 

03000 418181 

A25 Bradbourne Vale 
Road 

Improved 
pedestrian facilities 

& resurfacing 

Location identified for 
improvements alongside 

resurfacing and Bat & Ball 
project 

Scheme completed £295K £295K 
Steven Noad 

03000 418181 

P
age 210

A
genda Item

 10



A225 Dartford Road 
Pedestrian crossing 

proposal 

New pedestrian 
facilities 

Bid included within the 
Integrated Transport (ITP) 

Programme for funding 

Next ITP round expected to by mid 
February 2015 

 c £50k 
Steven Noad 

03000 418181 

Birchwood Road & 
Birchwood Corner 

Proposed 6’ 6” 
Width Limit Order 

Traffic Regulation Order out 
to consultation with Kent 

Police 

Police object to proposals in that they 
believe it will be widely disregarded unlikely 
to be enforced.  In addition signage will be 

required far in advance, particularly at 
Wilmington (Oakfield Road/Leyton Cross 

Road) 

 c £4k 
Steven Noad 

03000 418181 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 211

A
genda Item

 10



Appendix B 2013/2014 Member Highway Fund programme update for Sevenoaks District. 
 
The following list of schemes comprise of those which are outstanding from the previous 
financial year and new schemes for the current financial year which have been approved, 
programmed or complete. This information is up to date as of the 14 November 2014. 
 
More detail on the schemes below can be found online on the Kent Member Highway Fund 
database.  
 
 
 
Roger Gough – Darent Valley 
 

Scheme Reference Cost Status 

Horton Kirby – Vehicle Activate Sign 
12/13 

90100429 3500 Handed Over for 
Delivery 

Goldsel Rd/Green Court Rd, 
Crockenhill – wooden fencing and 
lining works 

13-MHF-SE-19 3390 Complete 

Swanley Village Gateways – 
Improvements to signing and lining 
on approach to the village 

13-MHF-SE-32 4919 Gates & signs complete 
– some remedial works.  
Lining handed over for 

delivery 

Swanley village Sign – remove for 
refurbishment 

13-MHF-SE-41 776 To be ordered 

Shoreham Village Gateways -  
Improvements to signing and lining 
on approach to the village 

13-MHF-SE-32 4765 Complete 

Badgers Mount Village Gateways – 
Provision of three village gates on all 
approaches to the village 

13-MHF-SE-41 776 Handed over for 
delivery 

 
Margaret Crabtree – Sevenoaks Central 
 

Scheme Reference Cost Status 

Wickenden Road – Dropped Kerbs 13-MHF-SE-18 875 Complete 

Buckhurst Lane, Sevenoaks – 
Dropped kerbs 

13-MHF-SE-12 1237 Complete 

Brittains Lane. Sevenoaks –  
(1) Interactive Road Narrowing sign  
(2) Lining improvements 

13-MHF-SE-52 5488 (1) Handed over for 
delivery 

(2) handed over for 
delivery.  Some 
completed 

Bayham Road, Sevenoaks – School 
Keep Clear Markings to the rear of St 
John’s Primary School 

13-MHF-SE-38 1660 Handed over for 
delivery 

Weald Road, Sevenoaks – 30mph 
roundel 

14-MHF-SE-59 279 Handed over for 
delivery 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 212

Agenda Item 10



Nick Chard – Sevenoaks East 
 

Scheme Reference Cost Status 

High Street Seal – Highway Mirror 13-MHF-SE-9 1000 Complete 

Childsbridge Road, Seal – Footway, 
signing and lining works 

13-MHF-SE-23 6650 Complete 

Shoreham Road, Otford –  
(1) Installation of a vehicle activated 

sign  
(2) Additional signing and lining 

improvements.   
This scheme is inclusive of a £3000 
contribution from The Otford Society 

13-MHF-SE-37 £8000 Element (1) - complete 
 

 Element (2) - handed 
over for delivery 

 
 
David Brazier – Sevenoaks North East 
 

Scheme Reference Cost Status 

A20 London Road, West 
Kingsdown – Bollards 

13-MHF-SE-13 
 

380 Complete 

Church Road, New Ash Green – 
Signing and Lining 

13-MHF-SE-3 1700 Complete 

Oak Farm Lane, Fairseat – 20mph 
Speed Limit 

13-MHF-SE-6 3350 Complete 

Milestone Acadmey, New Ash 
Green  - alterations to existing car 
parking arrangements 

13-MHF-SE-42 10520 Design on-going and in 
conjunction with the 

Academy 

 
Clive Pearman – Sevenoaks South 
 

Scheme Reference Cost Status 

High Street, Edenbridge – 
Construction of new length of footway 
and changes to parking restrictions 

13-MHF-SE-4 7500 Complete 

Crouch House Road – Signing and 
Lining 

13-MHF-SE-5 900 Complete 

Kiln Lane, Leigh – Lining 
Improvements 

13-MHF-SE-15 538 Complete 

Fordcombe Road, Penshurst – 
Signing and lining 

13-MHF-SE-16 3142 Singing complete, 
awaiting lining work 

Four Elms Crossroads – Additional 
Safety Improvements 12/13  

12400973 
 

18000 Complete 

Hilders Lane, Edenbridge – 
Improvements to existing bend 
warning signs and lining 

13-MHF-SE-43 516 Complete 

B2027/Cinders Hill Lane – Drainage 
scheme to include cleansing, grip 
cutting and drainage works 

13-MHF-SE-59 4326 Complete 

B2027/Stick Hill – Drainage scheme 
to include cleansing, grip cutting and 
drainage works 

13-MHF-SE-58 3090 Complete 

 
 
 

Page 213

Agenda Item 10



Robert Brookbank - Swanley 
 

Scheme Reference Cost Status 

Swanley Lane – Signing and Lining 
Improvements 

13-MHF-SE-1 3080 Complete 

Dahlia Drive – Dropped Kerbs 13-MHF-SE-2 800 Complete 

Sermon Drive – Tree replacement 13-MHF-SE-7 1386 Complete  

Birchwood Road, Swanley – 
signing and lining improvements 

13-MHF-SE-62  1939 Design On-going and to 
be delivered by Traffic 

Schemes. 

Durant Road, Hextable – vehicle 
crossover 

13-MHF-SE-55 1845 Complete 

 
Richard Parry – Sevenoaks West 
 

Scheme Reference Cost Status 

Main Road, Crockham Hill - 

Interactive Speed Sign 12/13 

16900383 7500 Handed Over for 
Delivery 

Main Road, Sundridge – refreshing 

of signing and lining in layby adjacent 

to A25 

13-MHF-SE-48 2000 Works Complete 

Bessels Green Road, Bessels 

Green – Parking restrictions 

13-MHF-SE-47 2340 Complete 
 

High Street, Chipstead – Parking 

Restrictions 

13-MHF-SE-46 1633 Complete 

High Street, Brasted – Installation of 

new Zebra Crossing in vicinity of 

White Hart Public House 

13-MHF-SE-45 15277 Awaiting safety audit 
results 

 

 

 

 

Page 214

Agenda Item 10


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Matters Arising/Update (Including Actions from Previous Meetings)
	4a Presentation of Petition by Otford Parish Council: Proposed Parking Regulations
	Otford Parking Regulations - Annex A - 4 Feb 2015 (2)
	Otford Parking Regulations - Annex B (1)_Redacted
	Otford Parking Regulations - Annex C - 4 Feb 2015 (1)
	Otford Parking Regulations - Annex D - 4 Feb 2015 (4)

	4b Presentation of Petition by Cllr. Walshe: Road Surfaces Wickenden and Swaffields Roads
	5 On-street parking restriction changes - Traffic Road Order 2013 Amendment 2 (various locations)
	05 On-street parking restriction changes - Traffic Road Order 2013 Amendment 2 - Appendix A Plans of Proposals (edited)
	Sevenoaks - 68 Granville Road - 260614
	Sevenoaks - Victoria Road - 260614
	Sevenoaks - Cramptons Road - 260614
	Sevenoaks - Moor Road - 260614
	Swanley - Sycamore Drive - 260614
	Edenbridge - Hillcrest Road A - 260614
	Farningham - High Street - 260614
	Sevenoaks - The Drive - 260614
	Sevenoaks - Barrack Corner area - 021014
	Swanley - Oakleigh Close A - 260614
	Crockenhill - Broadway A - 260614
	Edenbridge - Main Road & Brownings A - 260614
	Edenbridge - Mill Hill 2 A - 260614
	Farningham - Teardrop Centre - 070714
	Westerham - Bartlett Road & Delagarde Road - 270614
	Westerham - Black Eagle Close - 200814
	Westerham - Farley Nursery - 180914
	Westerham - The Green - 270614
	Westerham - The Paddock - 021014

	05 On-street parking restriction changes - Traffic Road Order 2013 Amendment 2 - Appendix B Location summaries
	01 Sevenoaks - Granville Road (near No.5) - after formal
	02 Sevenoaks - Dartford Road (outside Sackville Place) - after formal
	03 Sevenoaks - High Street (near the Oak Tree pub) - after formal
	04 Sevenoaks - High Street (near The Chequers pub) - after formal
	05 Sevenoaks - St Botolph's Road (near St Botolph's Court) - after formal
	06 Sevenoaks - Mount Harry Road (near No.108) - after formal
	07 Sevenoaks - Avenue Road - after formal
	08 Sevenoaks - Vine Court Road - after formal
	09 Sevenoaks - Robyns Way - after formal
	10 Sevenoaks - Morewood Close - after formal
	11 Edenbridge - Hilders Lane & Ashcombe Drive - after formal
	12 Edenbridge - Mill Hill (near Fairfield Close) - after formal
	13 Sevenoaks - Granville Road (near No.68) - after formal
	14 Sevenoaks - Victoria Road (near Beech Road) - after formal
	15 Sevenoaks - Crampton's Road - after formal
	16 Sevenoaks - Moor Road - after formal
	17 Swanley - Sycamore Drive - after formal
	18 Edenbridge - Hillcrest Road - after formal
	19 Farningham - High Street - after formal
	20 Sevenoaks - The Drive (near No.53) - after formal
	21 Sevenoaks - Barrack Corner - after formal
	22 Swanley - Oakleigh Close - after formal
	23 Crockenhill - Broadway - after formal
	24 Edenbridge - Main Road & Brownings - after formal
	25 Edenbridge - Mill Hill, Ashbys Close, Victoria Road & Waterlakes - after formal
	26 Farningham - Teardrop Centre - after formal
	27 Westerham - Bartlett Road & Delagarde Road - after formal
	28 Westerham - The Green - after formal
	29 Westerham - Black Eagle Close - after formal
	30 Westerham - The Paddock - after formal
	31 Westerham - Farley Nursery - after formal


	6 On-street parking restriction changes - Traffic Road Order 2013 Amendment 12 (Dunton Green)
	06 - March 2015 JTB - Parking Restrictions - Amendment 12 - Appendix A - Plans of proposals
	Dunton Green - Kingswood Road 121214
	Dunton Green - Station Road 121214
	Westerham - The Green 121214

	06 - Parking Restrictions - Amendment 12 - Appendix B - Formal consultation responses_Redacted
	06 - Parking Restrictions - Amendment 12 - Appendix C - Kingswood Avenue  consultation responses_Redacted
	06 - Parking Restrictions - Amendment 12 - Appendix D - The Green, Westerham consultation responses_Redacted
	06 - Parking Restrictions - Amendment 12 - Appendix E - The Green, Westerham - Cllr Maskell response

	7 Bat and Ball Improvements
	8 Highway Drainage
	08 - JTB Report January 2015 Appendix A drainage
	08 - JTB Report January 2015 Appendix B drainage

	9 Sevenoaks Highway Works Programme 2014/15
	10 Highway Improvement Scheme Progress Report



